
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, April 11, 2024

7:00 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - City Council members will participate in person in Council Chambers (Community Room,
100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150, North Oaks, MN) during the meeting.  Members of the public are
welcome to attend.  Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location
may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number: 1-312-626-6799, Webinar
ID: 857 1978 0519 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85719780519.  

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda
item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a.Approval of Licenses:

Arborists:  Balsam Tree and Shrub; B4K Tree Industries; Central Minnesota Tree Service; Expert Tree; Primo Tree
Experts LLC; Renstrom Tree Service; Rivard Tree Service; Vital Tree Service, LLC; 

Mechanical:  Air America Heating & Cooling, Inc.; B & D Plumbing, Heating & A/C; Don's Mechanical; Heating &
Cooling Two; Little Igloo Heating & Air Condition, Inc.; Metro Gas Installers; Titan Heating & Cooling Inc.

6b.Approval of meeting minutes of Special City Meeting 2.8.2024 and Regular City Council Meeting 2.8.2024
2.8.2024 Special City Council Minutes - draft.pdf

2.8.2024 City Council Minutes - draft.pdf

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2492661/2.8.2024_Special_City_Council_Minutes_-_draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2487625/2.8.2024_City_Council_Minutes_-_draft.pdf


City Council April 11, 2024

2

6c.Approve resolution accepting donation
Resolution_Accepting_Donations_for_Open_House aging grant.pdf

6d.Approve resolution for CUP for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 1 Sherwood Trail
2024-04-11 CC Packet_1 Sherwood Trail.pdf

6e.Approve resolution for CUP for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 2 Sherwood Trail
2024-04-11 CC packet_2 Sherwood Trail.pdf

6f.Approve resolution for CUP for Garage Size in Excess of 1,500 Square Feet and Building Addition at 70 West
Pleasant Lake Road
2024-04-11 CC Packet_70 W Pleasant.pdf

6g.Resolution approving septic variance at 4 Dove Lane
2024-04-11 CC packet_4 dove lane.pdf

6h.Resolution approving septic variance at 6 Badger Lane
2024-04-11 CC packet_6 Badger lane.pdf

6i.Accept 2023 Audited Financials

6j. Approval of City Financials 

Checks # 15255 - 15307 
EFT # 820e -323e, 827e - 843e

Check Register Detail March - April 2024.pdf

Check Register April 2024.pdf

Budget Diagrams April 2024.pdf

2024 Budget as of 4.11.2024.pdf

7.  Petitions, Requests & Communications  - Deputy Matt Lassegard Report
Deputy Lassegard Monthly Sherriff's Report

April2024CouncilMeeting.docx

8.  Unfinished Business
8a.Consider Ordinance amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Solar Energy Systems

2024-04-11_CC_Packet_solar_ordinance.pdf

9.  New Business
9a.Consider Ordinance amending City Code, Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Building Height and Setbacks in the

RSL - Residential Single-Family Low Density District
2024-04-11 CC Packet_buiding height ordinance.pdf

9b.Consider resolution supporting retention of City zoning authority
HF4010 4.02.2024.pdf

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2549274/Resolution_Accepting_Donations_for_Open_House_aging_grant.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546695/2024-04-11_CC_Packet_1_Sherwood_Trail.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546696/2024-04-11_CC_packet_2_Sherwood_Trail.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546698/2024-04-11_CC_Packet_70_W_Pleasant.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546699/2024-04-11_CC_packet_4_dove_lane.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546700/2024-04-11_CC_packet_6_Badger_lane.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2556639/Check_Register_Detail_March_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2556640/Check_Register_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2556912/Budget_Diagrams_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2556913/2024_Budget_as_of_4.11.2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2551595/April2024CouncilMeeting.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2556534/2024-04-11_CC_Packet_solar_ordinance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546702/2024-04-11_CC_Packet_buiding_height_ordinance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546705/HF4010_4.02.2024.pdf


City Council April 11, 2024

3

House Committee Advances Amended Multifamily Housing Development Bill - League of Minnesota
Cities.pdf

Memo re Comp Plan Amd Withdrawal 4-11-24.pdf

NO Resolution re Local Zoning Control 4.05.2024.pdf

10.  Council Member Reports

11.  City Administrator Reports

12.  City Attorney Reports

13.  Miscellaneous
13a.City Forester Report

February in Review.pdf

March in Review.pdf

14.  Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is Thursday May 9th, 2024.

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546706/House_Committee_Advances_Amended_Multifamily_Housing_Development_Bill_-_League_of_Minnesota_Cities.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546706/House_Committee_Advances_Amended_Multifamily_Housing_Development_Bill_-_League_of_Minnesota_Cities.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2557085/Memo_re_Comp_Plan_Amd_Withdrawal_4-11-24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2557086/NO_Resolution_re_Local_Zoning_Control_4.05.2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2479719/February_in_Review.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538544/March_in_Review.pdf


North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

February 8, 2024 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Krista Wolter, Councilor Sara Shah, Tom Watson, John Shuman (remote),  

Joined at 5:15 p.m. Mark Azman (running late) 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress 

 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. Discussion Item(s) 

3a. Discussion on Ramsey County Sheriff’s Office (RCSO) Contract 

 

• Mayor Wolter introduced the topic for the meeting, seeing where we are at and open 

discussion.  Would like to hear how the community service officer worked.   

• Councilor Watson reviewed a PowerPoint presentation on the contract. Ramsey County 

Sherriff Agreement expires 2024. They are 3-year agreements therefore the next review 

would be 2027. He notes it has been similar contract format for 25 years.  

• Shah mentioned that Falcon Heights renegotiated and has different terms while rate went 

up. They got a separate 1-year contract with rate increase.  

• Watson stated the objectives are: 

o Sustain a safe secure private community 

o Deter non-residents from entering community 

o Secure a law enforcement presence as a deterrent 

o Expected that criminal activity will be low or zero 

o Maintain an understanding of security options 

• Having a North Oaks Community Service Officer (CSO) went into effect in 2001, the 

idea was to have a seen presence 40 hours a week. During first ½ dozen years the 

individuals were college students doing undergrad law enforcement degrees at River 

Falls. Worked well with variable schedules.  

• He feels we are currently okay, but could strengthen the objectives. 

• Historical overview calls for service (not crimes under investigation):  28% medical, 6% 

Assist Fire, 10% alarm calls, 18% traffic. During 2023, Waverly Gardens has been 22% 

of our calls for service. Others have been adjudicated (refer to the chart). 

• Budget / Costs:  The Ramsey County Sherriff 2024 budget was $1,025,140 (increase of 

$103,140) 

• Services – Patrol allocation is 3.34 FTE. Issues around crime prevention, animal control, 

traffic, etc. North Oaks Deputy extra cost is 1.00 FTE.  Original budget in 2021 was 

$838,796, in 2024 it will be $1,025,140. 

4



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 2 

• Variables how cost allocation work: He feels the calls for service handled by North Oaks 

Deputy should not be included in the 7 City cost allocation. Need to confirm if that is the 

case. 

• Budget Components:  

o Patrol for North Oaks should be 3.34 FTE + 1.00 FTE 

o Incidents requiring investigation on 3-year avenue = 3.7%; we are charged 5.2% 

▪ We don’t have as many incidents requiring investigation as other cities 

o Crime Prevention – North Oaks = 6.2%.  What is the measure for us? North Oaks 

allocated $17,244 for 2024. Is there anything else we can be doing in this area? 

o Would like to see as much focus on Traffic as Crime prevention. 

o Property & Evidence – We are charged it, but there is not much evidence to support 

based on our crime. 

• Conclusions: 

o Important to review the allocation of each “service unit” with consideration of new 

“demand factors” such as: 1) new senior multi-unit senior housing, 2) allocation 

based on severity of calls for service; (felonies, gross misdemeanors, misdemeanors, 

traffic, gun violence, DWIs). 

o Actions:   

▪ Can RCSO provide accountability of hours and service in North Oaks 

▪ Is it correct cost allocation to account for North Oaks Deputy – are we 

paying for incidents twice? (coming out of the general contract hours and 

again from assigned Deputy). 

▪ Consider separate agreement for North Oaks Deputy (RCSO has just made 

a separate contract for Falcon Heights, so those resources may still get 

dispatched from our cities to theirs). 

▪ Request a RCSO meeting to negotiate 2024 budget 

▪ Review the demand at Waverly compared to the rest of community; 42% 

calls for service: 

• Re-visit costs to City compared; benefit to cost; main bldg. 

$62,000. Director of Presbyterian Homes states they may need 

more public safety during early and day hours, than evenings than 

rest of community requires. Waverly pays $62,000 in taxes to the 

City. Should City review needs with Dan Erickson at Waverly.  

• Councilor would like confirmation if Police is required at all medical calls. Who responds 

- just 1 squad, and fire department? 

• Watson thought that NOHOA could hire private security at anytime they want.  They can 

take pictures, and call for on patrol deputy to address more serious issues. RCSO still 

needs reason to stop someone for trespassing.  

• It was thought that when Bob retired as CSO, unable to find a replacement. Council 

decided to go with regular patrol with more authority. RCSO was not fond of idea of 

using private security instead of their contracted Deputies. Private Community Service 

officer was known to the Community and regular patrol.  Shah noted that Council has to 

determine if the value was there for the money.  

• Current contract is 40 hours per week for Deputy Lassegard as part of $156,000 line item.  

5



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 3 

• Shah noted that even if we didn’t have an individual CSO, that they are legally obligated 

to respond. Kress stated if there was not a 6 City agreement, then funds for support would 

be folded into Ramsey County taxes.  

• If a City drops out of the contract, other Cities would be charged more or reduction in 

their staff.  If North Oaks keeps their 1.0 Deputy, and kept their 1.0 CSO – the cost of 

funds coming out of the pool might be less as they are deterring some calls or addressing 

minor items on own.  

• On Friday / Saturday nights there are 3 cities that require a majority of the calls: Little 

Canada, Shoreview and Vadnais Heights.  Since May 1, 2022, reports reflect: Arden Hills 

has 12.3% of calls, Little Canada 23.6, North Oaks 5.9%, Shoreview 30.7%, Vadnais 

Heights 21.1%, White Bear Township 6.5%. 

• Wolter noted a resident from the Waverly area was concerned that only looking at 

cameras at the 6 entrances. Those in the Waverly area are older and would feel more 

secure having the License Plate Reader cameras in place.  

• North Oaks pays 8.95% of the overall contract, but fields 6% of the overall calls. It seems 

that Shoreview gets 30% of calls, but a lesser portion of the contract costs. 

• Administrator Kress looking into how Bear Path handles their security, a similar size 

private community.  

• We get a good presence from our CSO at community events, but perhaps we just need to 

press for police presence. Speed reduction carts are placed around on occasion, and there 

is currently a RCSO camera at Spring Farm area.  

• Bear Path has Security, gates, and license plate readers for 300 homes and comes from 

Homeowners Association dues.  

• Mayor Wolter noted that the CSO Bob, as well as Deputy Lassegard take Security 

seriously. 

• Watson noted that we could perhaps use the Ramsey County Sherriff’s office CSO 

program. They are on same radio frequency as licensed Deputy and could be working on 

the same day.  Deputy Matt is $156,000.  There are job openings through Ramsey County 

listed for CSO is $44,000 – 65,000.  They would also need patrol car and benefits so 

perhaps $100,000.  

• Shah noted that it might be good to separate the Ramsey County Sherriff’s contract, 

however Sherriff’s office may not be open to that.  

• Watson would like to take some of the items and arrange a time to visit with RCSO 

Undersheriff Jeff Ramacher,and just make sure all the areas still fit for our community.  

Perhaps include Sherriff Fletcher and County Commissioner in the discussion if need be.  

• Could also reach out to New Brighton for CSO function if need cost options.  

• Investigations and having access to Sherriff resources is important resource – it’s the 

daily costs and resources that we should discuss to ensure value.  

• Moving forward: would like to set up a workshop with Ramsey County Sherriff’s office 

to have a conversation, and see if any flexibility on arrangements.  Watson prefers an 

initial visit with just a few members of Council.  Then invite to a conversation with the 

whole Council. Also look at Crime Prevention piece for possible new ideas.  

• Azman inquired what the current arrangement is like for Chippewa Middle School and 

why there are not more calls for service. Council was unsure if CSO program is back in 

place.  

6



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 4 

• Administrator Kress to inquire with Dan Erickson about Waverly needs, and if calls for 

service are different for Condo’s. How do other cities handle multi-unit buildings?  

 

• Next steps include Watson and Shuman to set meeting with Ramsey County Sherriff’s 

office to discuss general topics: 

o What / if any is the impact of having multi-unit condo building on needs and costs 

o Kress to talk with Dan Erickson at Waverly about the drafted MSU agreement 

o Determine status of CSO response at Schools and incident tracking 

o What services get for Crime prevention 

o Traffic Patrol is 4.7% of charge, what services get / do we need more of. 

o How are incidents logged when Deputy Matt responds? Is there a double charge for 

the contract pool hours and also his CSO hours? 

 

 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Shah to adjourn the meeting 6:30 p.m. Motion carried 

unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Krista Wolter, Mayor  

 

 

Date approved____________ 

 

7



North Oaks City Council 

Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

February 8, 2024 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Krista Wolter. Council Members Mark Azman, John Shuman, Sara Shah, Tom 

Watson 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Attorney Bridget Nason, City Planner Mike 

Nielsen 

Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Wolter led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Rick Kingston, 5 Island Road, wanted to bring up a few items. He thanked Council for taking on 

the Master Infrastructure Study Project which is a vital part of the community going forward. He 

can’t imagine our community not having a process in place that identifies our infrastructure 

vulnerabilities 5-10 + years down the road. He feels like it is vital and what the public Council 

should be doing for the Community. 

 

He also wanted to speak on the topic of privacy which has come up at every recent meeting and 

communication. He questioned how we define privacy? The 1st bullet of the recent concerned 

citizen petition states the LPR project infringes on their privacy rights: they want to come and go 

to and from home through City entrances without monitoring or being recorded. Kingston feels 

we haven’t enforced our privacy rights since the gates came down years ago. Our Sheriff can’t 

use public funds to enforce our privacy rules. Every day Instacart, Amazon, service workers are 

coming and going and the Sheriff can’t pull every car over to determine their purpose in the City 

just because of their license plate. It’s his understanding there has only been 1 formal trespassing 

charge in the past year, which was someone inside a home during a graduation party in Charley 

Lake area.  

 

Kingston noted CNBC just reported that Amazon announced they are putting cameras and 

artificial intelligence in all of their Amazon delivery vehicles. They are doing this because their 

trucks are being attacked by criminals which are boxing in their trucks, stealing packages and 

putting their drivers at risk. Amazon has thoroughly evaluated the role of cameras and know they 

provide immediate response by law enforcement, aid in the prosecution of perpetrators and 

prevent attacks on their trucks when they know have been caught in act. This has proven to help 

track and catch criminals. He questions if residents concerned with LPR cameras are fine with 

Amazon and private dash cams filming license plates to prevent crime, but not the City in an 

effort to prevent crime. License plates are public records and Amazon and others filming license 

8



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 2 

plates can get name and address, so it’s not actually private.  For these reasons, Kingston is in 

full support of moving forward with the license plate reader program and feels City should move 

forward 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Administrator Kress asked Council to add item 9d White Bear Township Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) to new business right after 9c.  

 

MOTION by Shah, seconded by Watson, to approve the Agenda as revised.  

Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

6. Consent Agenda - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote. 

• 6a. Approval of Licenses: 

o Arborist: 1-2 Tree Lawn and Landscape; A Tree Service, Inc.; Cameron Tree Services, 

Inc.; Central Minnesota Tree Service; Hugo's Tree Care, Inc.; Morgan's Tree Service; 

Northland Landscape & Construction; Precision Landscape & Tree; Rainbow Tree 

Care; Twin City Tree Authority; Vineland Tree Care 

o Mechanical: DJ's Home Service, LLC; Home Energy Center; Leaf Home 

Enhancements dba Tundraland; MN All Seasons Comforts LLC; 

• 6b. Approval of City Council Minutes from: Special meeting on 1.11.2024, Regular City 

Council Meeting on 1.11.2024, and Special City Council Meeting on 1.16.2024 

• 6c. Approval of City Financials - EFTs: 805E - 810E, Check #'s: 15206- 15240 

 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Shuman, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

a. Deputy Matt Lassegard Report 

Deputy Lassegard presented a summary of his monthly report which includes:  

• 163 Calls for service. Spring Farm Sheriff’s camera is still in place, and contractors also 

had a trail camera that took a picture, called police and caught the thief up there. Shuman 

noted information captured from both cameras will also help prosecute this person who 

had troubles in other cities. 

• Believes they have suspect for driving incidents in local West Recreation center fields. 

Student will write letter, how it affects others and work on site with Mel’s to repair fields. 

• Housing watch program is going well and have twice as many on the list this year.  

• Safety and Security – there have been numerous accidents involving elderly and driving. 

He asks residents to be alert to elder family members who: having trouble walking, 

hearing things outside of vehicle, or have unexplained dings and dents on their car. These 

are signs may be a good time to talk to them about not driving anymore for safety of all. 

There is a form to submit through the Minnesota DMV if feel there is a dangerous 

medical issue and it will trigger driving evaluation.  

• Reminder to call 911 for any immediate issues.  

9



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 3 

• Fraud alert - Take precautions when selling cars to private parties. Make sure everything 

has been officially transferred out of your name after the sale, to ensure you are not liable 

if vehicle is involved in future incidents. 

 

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

8a. Presentations on Solar energy Systems 

 

Colin Buechel at All Energy Solar presented on Solar Energy. Key points include: 1) Types of 

solar arrays 2) examples of each type 3) rationale for choosing each array type, and 4) 

examples of ground arrays and screening.  

• Types:  

o Rooftop includes Flush-mounted, tilt-up and flat roof ballasted. 

o Ground system types include:  Four post-stationary (most common system), mono-

post, pole mount, single or dual axis with manual or automatic trackers. 

• The type of system chosen is based on: 

o Access to direct sunlight 

o How are roof planes are oriented 

o Will roof require structural support 

o Difficulty of installation on steep or slate roofs, etc.  

o Cost – upfront cost for grounds arrays are higher with more complicated racking 

system and footings with longer installation and trenching.  Rooftop has lower 

upfront cost, but may have future maintenance cost when roof shingles need 

replacement, and well as potential pest concerns such as squirrels between solar 

panels and rooftop chewing of wires.  Structural upgrades may also be required to 

support panels.  

• Most ground mounted are a 4-row panel system. Ground screws allow to adjust the height if 

the ground is sloped. 

• Screening:  Occasionally screening is required on ground mounted, but vast majority the 

jurisdictions do not have screening requirement written into code or local ordinances. From 

2021-2023, they installed 165 solar system and only 1 required screening. There is only 1 

that required a CUP.  Examples of screening includes minimum of three, six-foot-tall 

evergreen trees to fill visual gaps between the solar array and the street right of way. 

 

Brian Ross, VP of Renewable Energy at the Great Plains Institute, introduced himself.  

• They are a non-profit based out of Minneapolis educating and helping communities navigate 

the clean energy future. They can help community’s administrator the federal SolSmart 

program and become certified as Solar ready, as well as integrate into policy and procedures 

ways to incorporate green energy into community’s own unique environment. They created 

the model solar ordinance and continue to evolve it over time to adapt to new technologies, 

and economics. 

 

• Councilor Shuman asked how many of the 165-ground mounted solar are in rural areas vs. 

smaller lot residential areas. Mr. Buechel noted that required screening were on smaller lots.  

In the Metro area the vast majority are rooftop.  

 

10



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 4 

8b. Discussion and possible action on Aging in Place Grant 

 

• Nicholas Ouellette, City Planner from Landform, introduced the Aging in Place Grant Survey 

Report and asked Council if there are any further changes they would like to see documented 

in the Plan. The grant funds awarded to the City were for creation of the Aging in Place Plan 

only, not for implementation of the plan. The plan identifies an action plan, and City would 

need to work with NOHOA to determine what items from the action plan can be put in place 

to help serve senior residents at a reasonable cost or with creative resources. 

 

• Council was asked to take a final look at the Aging in Place Grant Plan and give feedback for 

any further changes to Administrator Kress.  

 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

9a. Discussion and possible action on cell phone tower survey  

 

• Kress stated NOHOA was looking to put on the City website a survey on how residents feel 

about cell phone network service coverage in our Community – what works and what is 

spotty coverage. It was noted the Survey form should be tweaked to add where to send 

survey.  It will be distributed on both NOHOA and City platforms. Kress will work with 

NOHOA to tweak and determine who will collect data.  Councilors did not have any issues 

with this. 

 

9b. Discussion and possible action on Planning Commission appointments, resolution appointing 

Planning Commission members, and resolution amending annual appointments 

 

Kress noted there were 2 Planning Commission vacancies for the Planning Commission: a 1-year 

term and a 3-year term.  The City received 3 applications, with 1 applicant dropping out.  

 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Shah, to approve Resolution 1507 appointing Joyce 

Yoshimura-Rank to a 1-year term, and David Loegering to a 3-year term on the Planning 

Commission. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Administrator Kress stated Resolution 1508 updates the names of the two newly appointed 

Planning Commissioners in the Master City list of appointments.  

 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Shuman, to approve Resolution 1508 amending the 

annual appointments. MOTION carried unanimously.  

 

9c. Discussion and possible action on minute taking payment.  

 

Administrator Kress noted that for the past 4 years the City has been outsourcing to Timesavers 

the taking of City Council Minutes, at an average rate of $250 per meeting. This was change 

from City staff taking minutes, to outsourcing to Timesavers, came after questions over detail in 

minute related to ongoing controversy with the new North Oaks Company developments. Kress 

suggested moving them back to City staff at a flat rate of $125 which is ½ the average cost of 

11



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 5 

Timesavers. Due to a full slate of normal work during the workday, transcription of meetings 

takes place after hours on non-work days. Paying staff $125 to take Council minutes would be a 

fair wage, while still saving the City money over Timesavers. 

 

Watson suggested a flat rate plus hours if extensive. Shuman suggested stay with Timesavers if 

helpful for the morale of City staff. Some concerned if too little or too much money, but overall 

thought the proposal would all balance out as some are long meetings, while others are short 

meetings. Others deferred to City Administrator to do what best for staff, who confirmed staff is 

in favor of the proposal. The minutes are to be completed after normal business hours as to not 

take away from regular work. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Shah, to pay City staff $125 to take minutes for City 

meetings. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 

9d.  MOU Agreement with White Bear Township 

Kress introduced the White Bear Township Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) document 

stating the new terms for utility maintenance support starting in 2025. Kress and Watson have 

been working on this with White Bear Township for past 6-8 months, and it has been sent to 

Council for review. They have worked with the White Bear Township Public Works Director 

and both City Attorneys to development agreement. Will need to install meter pits with magnetic 

flow meters on both sides to capture water flow data. Also, the City will need to find a new 

provider for maintenance of utilities such as lift stations and water lines, as well as taking on the 

water billing for the White Bear Township water (similar to how the City bills residents for use 

of Shoreview water).  This does not impact future requests connecting newly built communities 

to White Bear Township, which will still have to apply through the Joint Power Agreement. This 

is just a change for ongoing maintenance support.  

 

This agreement becomes effective in 2025 with no end date. The city would not see a reduction 

in amount billed by White Bear Township, but does resolve the cancellation notice from May 1, 

2022. The agreement does not discuss water limits, that is part of the Joint Powers Agreement, 

and users would still be subject to any water restrictions like other White Bear Township water 

users. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Wolter, to approve the White Bear Township MOU 

Agreement. Motion approved unanimously.  

 

 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  

• Nothing further from Councilor Watson. 

 

• Councilor Shuman stated he had nothing from VLAWMO. He noted he would like to 

assemble as much information as possible to put on the City website, case studies from other 

clients with LPR, private data storage, community questions and answers, any legal opinions 

on the topic and give the community several weeks to interact and review information and 

12



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  February 8, 2024 

P a g e  | 6 

concerns.  In the March or April Council meeting, he would like to see the Council LPR 

initiative on the agenda and make a 4 part motion: 1) Approval of the LRP Pilot initiative 2) 

data owned by City 3) authorizing City to sign contract 4) authorizing Ramsey County 

Sherriff office to be the only authorized end user party to access the information.  

 

• Mayor Wolter stated Master Infrastructure plan meetings continue every two weeks with City 

Engineer and Sambatek. She reminds residents the MIP is about long-range planning for the 

City. She has seen there have been prices put out there by residents, however there has been 

NO pricing on any of this information, it is strictly gathering of information and discussion 

on needs.  There will be interactive website and moving forward just looking ahead to what 

needs our City has in the long-term future.  

 

• Councilor Shah shared that at the January Fire Board meeting, the Chief provided a summary 

of all calls from all contract cities with response times. Shah asked that Waverly Garden 

figures in their next meeting. Each City was asked to go back and investigate bond options 

for funding. Kress noted that either 1 City can take a lead with other cities paying in, or can 

take out multiple bonds. They will also look at other funding options.  

 

• Azman noted he is in between meetings, nothing of significance to report. 

 

 

11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 

Administrator Kress deferred to City Engineer to provide update on County Road J project.   

 

Engineer Nielson stated that Bolton-Menk was selected as the Engineer for the County J Road 

interchange reconstruction project. They are currently setting up a schedule for this project, and 

Cities are reviewing an intersection control evaluation. Nielsen will stay up to date and bring 

future project updates back to the Council.  

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  

None. 

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS  

13a. January 2024 Forestry Report 

 

City Forester January report is included in the packet.  

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Shah, to adjourn the meeting at 8:19 p.m. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Krista Wolter, Mayor  

 

Date approved___________ 

13



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXXX 

 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ACCEPTING DONATIONS 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Oaks (City) is generally authorized to accept donations of 

real and personal property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 465.03 for the benefit of its 

citizens, and is specifically authorized to accept gifts; and  

 

WHEREAS, Presbyterian Homes has donated funds to the City, which are to be used for 

the City of North Oaks Aging Grant Survey Open House in the following amounts: 

 

 

Presbyterian Homes   $2,000 

 

 

WHEREAS, such donations have been contributed to the City for the benefit of its 

citizens, as allowed by law; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is appreciative of the donations and finds that it is appropriate to 

accept the donations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council of the City of North Oaks does 

hereby accept the donations in the amounts listed above, and the city clerk is hereby directed to 

issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the City’s receipt of the donations.   

Approved by the City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota this 11th day of April, 2024 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

     

Krista Wolter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

     

Kevin Kress, City Administrator

14



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  April 5, 2024 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 feet at 1 Sherwood 

Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   December 26, 2023 

Date Application Determined Complete: January 4, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   April 11, 2024 

120-day Review Date:   April 24, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark Englund of Hanson Builders has requested approval of a conditional use permit to allow 
the construction of a new home at 1 Sherwood Trail to be 40 feet and 7 inches in height, greater 
than 35 feet in height permitted in the City Code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well 
as building elevations, a survey and a site plan for the proposed structure. 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their February 29th meeting. The Planning 
Commission asked questions about the tree removal that took place on the lot. Administrator 
Kress noted that the subdivision had a master grading plan approved, the majority of removed 
trees were diseased and the City does not have a tree preservation ordinance. Tree 
preservation is generally a NOHOA issue. 

15



 

 

The Chair asked the applicant to provide more information about the tree removal and any 
restoration required by NOHOA. The Commission indicated support for the request but 
recommended adding a condition the Council evaluate the tree removal and replacement as 
part of the conditional use request.  

The Commission voted 6-1 to recommend approval of the conditional use permit with the 
additional condition regarding trees. 

Following the Planning Commission meeting, the applicant provided a copy of the NOHOA 
memo regarding tree removal and replacement for the lots at 1, 2, 8 and 12 Sherwood. 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve development.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Homes greater than 35 feet in 
height are subject to the conditional use permit 
(CUP) standards and process in Section 
151.050(D.7) (conditional uses), Section 
151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 
151.079 (CUP procedure) of the Zoning Code.  

The 1.96-acre property is located at the northeast corner of Sherwood Trail and Sherwood Road 
(County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is set back 60.7 feet from the roadway 
easement and the side and rear elevations are setback more than 100 feet from the adjacent 
property lines. 

  

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

16



 

 

Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the eastside elevation of the proposed home to 
exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
40 feet and 7 inches in height along the eastern-side facade. The front, western-side and rear 
facades of the home are 35 feet in height. Building height is defined as the vertical distance 
from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface in Section 151.005 of 
the Zoning Code. 

Size 

The footprint of the house is 3,208 square feet. A FAR worksheet has not been provided with 
the application. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the 
time of review by the Building Official. 

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 
 

2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 
 
The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building the single-family 
home are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level along 
the eastern-side facade. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and walkout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout. Prior to construction, 
the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does 
not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 
visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 
 

17



 

 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The proposed western-side and rear elevations are a maximum of 35 feet tall. The eastern-side 
elevation is 40 feet and 7 inches in height and is setback approximately 123 feet from the east 
property line where a 40 foot side yard setback would be required due to the increased height. 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 

18



 

 

 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  

  

19



 

 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Survey dated December 26, 2023 

Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative dated December 26, 2023 

Exhibit C: Building elevations dated December 26, 2023 

Exhibit D:  Email from NOHOA dated March 5, 2024 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff and Planning Commission recommend approval of the request for 
a Conditional Use Permit to allow construction of a single family home exceeding 35 feet in height at 1 
Sherwood Trail, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on December 26, 

2023. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 
grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 

20



 

 

6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 
151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 
9. The Council shall evaluate the tree removal and replacement plan approved by NOHOA and 

outlined in the March 5, 2024 email and make it part of the record. 
 

 
ACTION 

 
Move to recommend approval of the resolution approving a Conditional Use Permit for Building 
Height in Excess of 35 feet at 1 Sherwood Trail, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 

21



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR BUILDING 
HEIGHT IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET AT 1 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 
 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 
Mark Englund of Hanson Builders for the real property located at 1 Sherwood Trail, North 
Oaks, Ramsey, County, Minnesota, and legally described on the attached EXHIBIT A (the 
“Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 
in height; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 
North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 
a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 
before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 462.357, subd. 3, on February 29, 2024 at which hearing the Planning Commission 
voted to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, subject to certain 
conditions.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to exceed a 35 foot building height, is 
approved for the Property subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received by 
the City on December 26, 2023 and shall have a maximum height as shown on 
the plans of 40 feet, 7 inches. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before 
the issuance of a building permit. The building permit application shall contain 
an erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting 

construction disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the 
dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed 
downstream of all proposed grading, in order to ensure proper 

22



 2 

containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be taken to 
maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation 
due to grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in 
the deposit of additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of 

construction.  
a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement 

at the time of review by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% 
FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 
6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in 

accordance with Section 151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 

8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district 
rules and regulations. 

 
9. The Council shall evaluate the tree removal and replacement plan approved by 

NOHOA and outlined in the March 5, 2024 email and make it part of the record. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 
are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 
Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 
 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 11th day of April, 2024. 
      
 
 
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
 
Attested: 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator 
 

23

https://www.northoaksmn.gov/node/475


 3 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 
Tract K, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 
PIN: 063022130015 
 

24



25



26



27



Sherwood.  We followed your suggested format of addressing code section 151.078 pertaining
to variances and provided as much supporting information and visuals as we thought
necessary to address the practical difficulties of building on this lot.
 
Take a look and let us know if you have any questions or suggestions before compiling this
packet for the next planning commission meeting
 
Thanks for your help so far
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    

 

From: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 2:25 PM
To: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: Re: 8 Sherwood

Below is the email communication from Bill Long pertaining to the tree agreement.  I’ll follow
up with the revised narrative
 
Good Afternoon Everyone, 
 
I want to update you on the plan that NOHOA has agreed to with Hanson Builders in the Sherwood Trail area.
 

1. NOHOA and Hanson Builders have agreed that Hanson will plant a total of twenty trees, each of a
minimum 2.5 inch diameter at breast height, on the five lots that Hanson acquired from the North
Oaks Company on Sherwood Trail in North Oaks.

2. Tentatively, these trees will be planted on Sherwood lots 1,2, 8 and 12. Taking a closer look at the
topography of the area and where the most ash trees were lost, we think planting along the west side
of lots 1 and 2 along Sherwood Road will improve screening for the entire area. Planting trees on the
south sides of lots 8 and 12 will ensure some screening of the homes on Red Maple Lane. Since lot 4
basically backs up to a wetland, we didn't feel the need to screen that area.

3. Hanson to consult with Steve Nicholson, a certified forester, of TreeBiz LLC on species selection and
exact locations of the plantings to optimize their benefit. The locations, but not the total number of
trees to be planted, may be modified based on Mr. Nicholson's input.

4. Neighbors on Sherwood Trail and Red Maple Lane are encouraged to collaborate with Hanson in

28

tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


planting additional trees at the neighbors' expense on their own properties to help mitigate the loss of
so many ash trees in the area to Emerald Ash Borer.

5. NOHOA (Bill Long and Julia Hupperts,) can assist in coordinating a walkthrough of the area with
Hanson, TreeBiz and neighbors in the area as the tree plan is finalized.

 
Also, though this wasn't part of the agreement, NOHOA is trying to find a way to get better pricing on trees to
be planted in this area. With such a large number going in to a single neighborhood, we may be able to get a
discount.  Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. I will keep you posted as to next steps
and timing.
 
Bill
 
Bill Long
NOHOA Secretary
BODLong@nohoa.org
651-276-4392

 
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    

 

From: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 1:43 PM
To: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: RE: 8 Sherwood

Scott,
 
Yes, please share whatever information you have about the tree removal and restoration
agreement.  It may help head off further discussion at the Council.
 
If you can get your narrative in by the end of the week, that would be great.
 
We are only going to have 3 council members at the 3/14 meeting, so we will push all of the
planning items to the April 11th Council meeting.

29

mailto:BODLong@nohoa.org
tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  April 5, 2024 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 feet at 2 Sherwood 

Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 25, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 2, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 25, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   April 11, 2024 

120-day Review Date:   May 24, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark Englund of Hanson Builders has requested approval of a conditional use permit to allow 
the construction of a new home at 2 Sherwood Trail to be 39.63 feet in height where 35 feet is 
the maximum height permitted in the City Code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well as 
building elevations, a survey and a site plan for the proposed structure. 

 

 

 

 

30



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 29, 2024. There was no one 
present to speak on this item. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to recommend approval.  

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve development.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Homes greater than 35 feet in 
height are subject to the conditional use permit 
(CUP) standards and process in Section 
151.050(D.7) (conditional uses), Section 
151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 
151.079 (CUP procedure) of the Zoning Code.  

The 3.75-acre property is located at the southeast corner of Sherwood Trail and Sherwood 
Road (County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is setback 33.5 feet from the roadway 
easement and the side and rear elevations are setback more than 80 feet from the adjacent 
property lines. 

Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the southern (rear) elevation of the proposed home 
to exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
39.63 feet in height along the rear facade. The front and side facades of the home are 34.8 feet 
in height. Building height is defined in Section 151.005 of the Zoning Code as the vertical 
distance from grade to the top ridge of the highest roof surface. 

Size 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

31



 

 

The footprint of the house is 2,808 square feet. A FAR worksheet has not been provided with 
the application. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the 
time of review by the Building Official. 

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 
 

2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 
 
The building height at the rear and side elevations does not exceed 45 feet. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and lookout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout. Prior to construction, 
the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does 
not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 
visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 
 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The proposed front and side elevations are a maximum of 35 feet tall. The rear elevation is 39.63 in 
height and is setback more than 100 feet from the south and east property line where a 40 foot side 
yard setback would be required due to the increased height. 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 

32



 

 

 
The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 
 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

33



 

 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

Exhibit B: Site Survey dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit D: Building elevations dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit E:  Email from NOHOA dated March 5, 2024 

  

34



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of a single family home exceeding 35 feet in height at 2 Sherwood Trail, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on January 25, 

2024 and the building height shall not exceed 39.63 feet. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 
grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement before a building permit may be 

issued. 
 

6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 
151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 

 
 

  

35



 

 

ACTION 
 
Move to adopt the resolution approving a Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess 
of 35 feet at 2 Sherwood Trail, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 

 
 

36



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR BUILDING 
HEIGHT IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET AT 2 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 
 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 
Mark Englund of Hanson Builders for the real property located at 2 Sherwood Trail, North 
Oaks, Ramsey, County, Minnesota, and legally described on the attached EXHIBIT A (the 
“Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 
in height; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 
North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 
a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 
before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 462.357, subd. 3, on February 29, 2024 at which hearing the Planning Commission 
voted to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, subject to certain 
conditions.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to exceed a 35-foot building height, is 
approved for the Property subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on 
January 25, 2024 and shall have a maximum height as shown on the plans of 
39.63 feet. 

 
2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before 

the issuance of a building permit. The building permit application shall contain 
an erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting 
construction disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the 
dripline.  

 
 

4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

37



 2 

 
a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed 

downstream of all proposed grading, in order to ensure proper 
containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be taken to 
maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation 
due to grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in 
the deposit of additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of 

construction.  
a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement 

at the time of review by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% 
FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement before a 

building permit may be issued. 
 

6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in 
accordance with Section 151.031 of the City Code. 

 
7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

 
8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district 

rules and regulations. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 
are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 
Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 11th day of April, 2024. 
      
 
 
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
 
Attested: 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator 

38

https://www.northoaksmn.gov/node/475


 3 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 
Tract J, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 
PIN: 063022130014 
 

39



Map Ramsey

Personal Property

Tax Parcels

Cities

County Offices

2/6/2024, 10:44:13 AM

0 0.4 0.80.2 mi

0 0.6 1.20.3 km

1:16,000

Ramsey County
Ramsey County MN

40



41



42



LOWER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

DRYWALL LEDGE(X) XX - FLUSH

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" CONC. WALL 42" HIGH

20"X8" FOOTING R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

5/D2

10
" P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

9'-2" M.O.

16'-2" M.O.

2'
-0

"

9'-2" M.O.

8"
X4

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

54
"X

12
" F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG

34"X48"
TILE FLOOR &

WALLS TO CLG

DRYWALL LEDGE

36X54
FIXED

36X54
FIXED

2-
2X

6

(X) XX - FLUSH

36X54
FIXED

2-
2X

6 36X42
CSMT

36X42
CSMT

2-
2X

6 36X42
FIXED

36X54
CSMT

36X54
CSMT

2868

3068

96
X4

8
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
G

LA
SS

 - 
N

O
T

W
IN

D
O

W
 - 

SE
T

42
" A

FF 3068

2668

2468

3"

2468

2468 PKT

UP 16
RISERS

FURNACE

ER
V

WATER
METER SUMPWH

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
20"X8" FOOTING

FD

V
ER

IF
Y 

LC
TN

IN
 F

IE
LD

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

1'
-8

"

4'-4"

LINEN

DRWS

DRWS

TB

TR

10
" S

O
FF

IT

2468

SHELVES

SH
&

RD

FAMILY ROOM

WET BAR

LL
BATH

LL BEDROOM 5

FUTURE
SAUNA

FINISHED
STORAGEEXERCISE

GAMES

MECH/
STORAGE

8'-3" 7'-11" 3'-3" 6'-9" 4'-5" 2'-1" 8'-6" 3'-2"

30'-7" 5'-8" 13'-9"

50'-0" 13'-0"

63'-0"

10
'-5

"
5'

-7
"

16
'-0

"
12

'-6
"

24
'-6

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

30" CANT
ABOVE

9'-0"

22'-0"19'-5 1/2"

9'-0"10'-5 1/2"

3'
-6

"

16
'-6

"
4'

-6
"

4'
-0

"

5'-11"5'-1"10'-0"10'-0"5'-1"

11'-0"20'-0"10'-3"

5'-11"

7'-6"12'-6"8'-0"

28'-9"

4'
-6

"
5'

-6
"

10
'-0

"

34
'-6

"
17

'-0
"

1'-4 1/2"

4'-3 1/2"

12
'-8

"
3'

-1
1 

3/
4"

6'
-0

 1
/4

"
9'

-4
"

16
'-7

 3
/4

"
15

'-4
 1

/4
"

57
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

14
'-3

"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
9'

-8
 1

/4
"

6'-8"

17'-1" 13'-11" 9'-0"

3'-0"
13'-4 3/4" 6" 1'-1" 10'-5" 2'-0 1/2"

3'
-0

 1
/4

"
3"

1'-9"

4'-2"

3'
-2

 3
/8

"

7'
-5

"
10

'-2
 1

/4
"

SH
EL

F

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

3-4/D2

8" POURED WALL
VERIFY HT IN FLD.
20"X8" FOOTING

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG
2X6 BRG

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

14
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

3/D3

2'-10"

(X) XX - DROPPED

(X) XX - DROPPED

(X) XX - FLUSH

G
IR

D
ER

(X) XX
FLUSH

40" HIGH
HALF WALL

5/D4

(X) XX

(X) XX DROPPED 8" (X) XX DROPPED 8"

(X) XX

POST

POST
POST POST

5'-0"

9'-2"
1ST R UP

CODE RAIL

LAWN
FAUCET

AC UNIT

HOT WATER
CIRCULATING

PUMP

A

A

B

B

CC
POST

POST

POST

POST

PT L
D PT LD

PT LD

PT LD

PT L
D

POSTPOST

POST

44 43

FLOOR BREAK
LINE

FL
O

O
R 

BR
EA

K
LI

N
E

D
RW

R
D

W

42

38

C
HA

SE
 A

BO
V

E

WALL
UNDER
STAIRS

D
EC

K 
A

BO
V

E

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

7'
-3

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-1

1 
3/

4"

BE
V

FR
ID

G
E

IC
E

1'-2"

SH
EL

V
ES

15
"

RE
C

Y

2'-3"

9'-8"
BYPASS

1'
-1

0 
3/

4"

PA
N

TR
Y

C
A

B

3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

LOWER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-2" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  7'-0" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT @ WALKOUT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING
WALLS
4.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
5.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A1

LOWER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

43



MAIN LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

V
EN

T

30X96
FIXED

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 6"
BELOW CLNG

30X96
FIXED

30X96
FIXED

30X96
FIXED

36X64 36X64 30X64

36X72 36X7236X72

60
X7

2
FI

XE
D

36
X7

2
36

X7
2

6'-0"X8'-0"
SGD

2'
-8

"X
6'

-1
0"

LI
FE

ST
YL

E
2'

-8
"X

6'
-1

0"
LI

FE
ST

YL
E

2868
20 MIN DR
3 RISERS

4'-0"
CLEAR

3'-0"X8'-0"

16' x 8' OHD - INSULATED

SEE NARROW BRACING DETAIL
EXTEND HEADERS TO CORNERS

(X) XX
9'X8' OHD - INSULATED

(X) XX

(X) XX
9'X8' OHD - INSULATED

32X72
CSMT 2-

2X
6 32X72

CSMT

30
X4

8
36

X7
2-

2

24
80

 D
BL

RO
LL

ER
4'

-0
"

2X
6

42"
WALL

2X
6

2480

TR

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-2X6

2-2X6

(X) XX
DROP

(X) XX
DROP

POST

POST

POST

POST

RAIL

UP 19
RISERS

DN 16
RISERS

CODE RAIL

6'-8"

12'-6"
1ST R UP

2X6 BRG
RAIL

RAILRAIL

(X) XX
FLUSH

SEE ENGINEERING
PG S8 FOR TALL
WALL FRAMING

40
X6

0
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

2K

2K

32
X9

6 
BA

RN
D

O
O

R
2480

2880

SINK

3"

BENCH

SINK

2'
-5

"

43"X72"
RECESS

MICRO/
OVEN

REF

SH&RD

SH
&

RD

GREAT
ROOM

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

1'
-6

"

8" 5 3/8"

2X4 LSL FLAT
ATTACHED W/ 6"
LEDGER LOCK

EVERY 2'

LED LIGHTS
ON LEDGE

TYP. DETAIL
@ GR & KT

4"

FINISH DIMS

1'-4"

1'
-6

"

4'-0"

GAS

FURNACE

GARAGE
4" CONCRETE FLOOR WITH

FIBER MESH SLOPED TO DOORS
2X6 GARAGE WALLS @ 16" O.C.

5
8" DRYWALL ON CEILING
1
2" DRYWALL ON WALLS

INSULATE WALLS & CEILING

9:
12

 V
A

UL
T

9:
12

 V
A

UL
T

RIDGE VAULT

DINETTE

KITCHEN

SUNROOM

PREP
PANTRY

FO
O

D
PA

N
TR

Y

CANINE
CORNER

MUDROOM

WIC

ENTRY

STUDY

HALF
BATH

GRILL
DECK

5'-0"

1

2

3

4

3'
-0

"

7'-6"

1'
-7

"
2'

-2
"

3"

2X
6

2X6 2X6

LINE OF STONE

SIDING INSIDE
THESE WALLS

PORCH

4'-3" 2'-9" 2'-9" 2'-9" 2'-0" 2'-11" 3'-3" 2'-7" 5'-3" 5'-6" 6'-6 1/4" 7'-3"

2X
6

2X
6

5

6

7

8

11

12 1615

17

18

19

13'-9 1/4"2'-2 3/4"10'-9"8'-9"

14'-6" 19'-6" 16'-0" 13'-0"

63'-0"

8'
-0

"
8'

-0
"

3'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

2'
-0

"
2'

-1
"

8'
-5

"
4'

-1
"

3'
-6

"

2'
-6

"
16

'-0
"

12
'-6

"
24

'-6
"

2'
-0

"

57
'-6

"

9'-0"

22'-0"

4'
-3

"
4'

-0
"

4'
-3

"
5'-11"5'-1"10'-0"10'-0"5'-1"5'-2"

2 1/2"
1'-7 1/2"5'-1"1'-7"11'-5"7'-10"1'-0"

11'-0"20'-0"10'-3"8'-6"20'-3"

70'-0"

4'
-0

"
4'

-6
"

14
'-3

"
2'

-3
"

21
'-0

"

22'-0"

7'-6"11'-11 1/2"

19'-5 1/2"

1'-0"

3'
-4

"
1'

-1
1"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

4'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

2X6 BRG

12
'-0

"
5'

-3
"

7'
-1

1"
9'

-5
"

5'
-8

 1
/2

"
5'

-6
"

5'
-8

 1
/2

"

16
'-1

1"
34

'-7
"

10
'-0

"

5'
-6

"

8'-0"

59
'-6

"

12'-6"

3'-9"3'-9"
4'-9 1/2"2'-11"4'-9 1/2"

7'-1" 5'-1 3/4" 8'-3 3/4" 41'-5 1/2"

1'-11 1/2"
6'-4 1/4"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

6'
-0

"
1'

-7
"

5'
-4

 1
/4

"

5'
-3

 1
/4

"
2'

-6
"

11
"

2'
-1

"

3"

4'-2"

4'
-6

"

16
'-7

 3
/4

"

2X6 BRG 2X6
BRG

7'-6"4'-0"4'-0"5'-11"

6"

3"

5'-0"4'-0"

13'-9"2'-9"4'-0"9'-6"
9'-2 5/8"

6'-0 5/16"

3'
-0

 1
/2

"

1'-6 1/2"
16'-3 1/4" 6"

1'
-0

"
6'

-6
"

1'
-7

"

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

FL
O

O
R 

LI
N

E 
A

BO
V

E

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

A

A

B

B

CC

9'
-8

 1
/4

"

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

46
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

8" RAISED CLG W/
PERIMETER SOFFIT

2X6

(X) XX - FLUSH

8'
-3

"
TO

 C
TR

 O
F 

RA
N

G
E

G
IR

D
ER

(X) XX FLUSHPOST

POST POST

(X) XX DROPPED 10"POST

POST
POST

POST(X) XX FLUSH (X) XX

POST (X) XX
FLUSH

POST

(X) XX
DROPPED

(X
) X

X
D

RO
PP

ED

(X) XX
DROPPED

(X
) X

X
D

RO
P

(X
) X

X
D

RO
P

CODE RAIL

LAWN
FAUCET

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

3-4/D2

PT LD
PT LD

PT LD
PT LD

(X) XX - FLUSH

POST

POST

4'-10 1/2" 4'-10 1/2"

(X) XX FLUSH

G
IR

D
ER

RA
N

G
ET

O
P

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 14"

BELOW CLNG

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 14"

BELOW CLNG

7'-6"

34
33

DINING

2'
-4

"

MELAMINE
SHELVES

C
HA

SE

7'
-0

"

1'-6"

30X6430X64 2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

D
W

R
M

IC
RO

10

9

32"Xxx"
RECESS

6'-9 1/4"

WINE
REF

SHELVES

24
80

 P
KT

3"
2X

6
18

/D
4

2'
-4

"

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

DWRE
C

Y

44
"X

20
"X

4"
D

RE
C

ES
S

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAINTRENCH DRAIN

MAIN FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  10'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  8'-7 18" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
4.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING &
KITCHEN WALLS
5.  20 MINUTE FIRE DOOR @ GARAGE TO HOUSE
6.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A2

MAIN FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

44



UPPER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

6"
6"

W
A

SH
ER

 A
LW

A
YS

O
N

 L
EF

T

2X
6 

FU
RR

 W
A

LL

28

27

DRWS

DRWS

LINEN

CODE RAIL

CODE RAIL

5'-0"
11'-8"

1ST R DN

RAIL

RA
IL

CELESTE
67X31

36" WALLS W/
48" GLASS

18" TALL TILED
BENCH

SH&RD

DRWS

D
RW

S

SH&RD

SH
&

RD

HEATED
FLOOR

SHELF

30X60
CAST IRON W/
 TILE WALLS TO

CLG

DRWS
TR

TB

SH&RD

SH&RD

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4

J&J
BATHWIC

WIC

WIC

GREAT HALL

LINEN

LAUNDRY

OWNER'S
BEDROOM

12" RAISED CLG W/
PERIMETER SOFFIT

OWNER'S
BATH

WIC

2668

2668

24
68

 P
KT

24
68

 P
KT

24
68

 P
KT

3"
28"X83"
DWO

28"X83"
DWO

3"

2468

TB

2668

2668

3'
-1

1 
1/

4"
6"

 S
O

FF
IT

5'
-2

"
30

"X
83

"
D

W
O

6" SOFFIT

3"
3'-0"

3"

6" SOFFIT

3" 3'-0" 3"

2468

2868

8" 4'-1 1/2" 8"

6" SOFFIT

6" SOFFIT

8" 4'-1 1/2" 8"

2468 DBL
ASTRIGAL

3068

3"3"

6" SOFFIT

2468

2468

C
UR

B

C
UR

B

2X4
FURR WALL

2'-5"2'-6"2'-5"

RH RH

30
"

O
PN

G

30
"

O
PN

G

36X66 48X66
FIXED2-

2X
6

2-
2X

6

36X66 30X66
TEMP

30X66
TEMP

24
X2

4
FI

XE
D

(2) 32X60
CSMT-TEMP

40
X8

0
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

72
X3

4
FI

XE
D

(2) 36X60
CSMT

30
X3

0
FI

XE
D

3'
-1

 1
/2

"

DN 19
RISERS

7'-9 1/4" 7'-8 3/4" 4'-1" 2'-1" 2'-1" 4'-5"
15'-6" 6'-2" 7'-4" 6'-6"

35'-6" 12'-0"

2'
-1

0"
1'

-9
"

4'
-8

"
6'

-8
"

12
'-7

"
4'

-7
"

11
'-4

"

3'
-4

"
6'

-7
"

13
'-1

"

28
'-6

"
23

'-0
"

3'
-6

"

(2) 36X60
CSMT

5'-1 1/2"5'-1 1/2"8'-0"4'-4"2'-8"1'-0"4'-0"5'-0"

1'-4 1/2"
10'-3"

1'-10 1/2"
15'-0"6'-0"10'-0"3'-0"

2'-7 1/2"3'-4 1/2"

6"6"

1'
-0

"

4'
-5

"
4'

-6
"

3'
-1

0 
1/

2"
3'

-1
0 

1/
2"

17
'-6

"
8'

-1
1"

7'
-9

"
17

'-4
"

51
'-6

"
1'

-0
"

52
'-6

"

55
'-0

"

2'-6"
TYP

2'
-6

"
TY

P
7'-0"4'-0"7'-4"

11'-4" 5'-10"

2'-8" 3'-8" 4'-3 1/2" 1'-4 1/2"

8'-4"

8'
-1

1"
1'

-0
"

1'-0"

13'-10 1/4"11'-11 3/4"5'-3 1/2"4'-4 1/2"12'-0"

6'
-1

"
5'

-1
0"

1'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

3'-10 1/2" 5'-9 1/2"
3'-10 1/2"

9'
-1

"
4'

-2
"

3'
-0

"
1'

-7
"

5'-2 1/4" 2'-11" 4'-6 1/4"

4'-9 1/4"13'-6 3/4"5'-10"11'-4"

10
'-6

"
3'

-0
 1

/4
"

1'
-4

 1
/4

"
4'

-0
 1

/2
"

7'
-6

"
5'

-3
"

7'
-9

"

3'-1 1/2"

2'-5"1'-1"3'-6"

5'
-6

"
8'

-2
"

BYPASS

34"X48"
TILE WALLS

TO CLG
& FG BASE

SHELF

A

A

B

B

CC

47'-6"

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

TRTR
SH

EL
V

ES

GIRDERGIRDER

POST

POST

POST

POST

6'
-6

" S
ID

E
W

A
LL

6'
-6

" S
ID

E
W

A
LL

8:12
VAULT

8:12
VAULT

4'-5 5/8"
8'-1 18" CLG

HEIGHT

7' SIDE
WALL

16:12
SLOPE

SET @ 6'-0" AFF

20

21 22

DRWS

DRWS

LINEN

DRWS

M
A

KE
UP

D
ES

K

23

24

25

26

1'
-0

"

MELAMINE
SHELVES

TB

SUITE
BATH 4

DRWS

RAIN HEAD

SHOWER VALVES
CENTERED BELOW

HEADS

DIVERTER

TILE TO
CLG

SINK

TILE ALL
SHOWER
WALLS

UPPER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  6'-11 3 8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING

WALLS
4. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER

FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

RADON MITIGATION SYSTEM
1.

A3

UPPER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

45



FRONT ELEVATION

UPPER FLOOR PLATE

UPPER FLOOR

MAIN FLOOR PLATE

MAIN FLOOR

TOP OF FOUNDATION

TOP OF FTNG

10
'-1

 1
/8

"
8'

-1
 1

/8
"

8'
-7

 1
/8

"
6'

-1
1 

3/
8"

8'
-4

"

WINDOW

WINDOW

22
 3

/4
"

22
 1

/4
"

SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

7'
-0

"

WINDOW

TOP OF FLOOR

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

HOUSE #

MAIN
FLOOR

8'
-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

BL28532'
-0

"

6"
 T

RI
M

9 
5/

8"
HE

EL8
12

4'-5 5/8"

1'
-2

 1
/2

"
HE

EL

6'
-6

"

8 
5/

16
"

HE
EL

1'
-0

"

11
 5

/8
"

HE
EL

7'
-0

"

16
12

5'-4 13/16"

4'
-6

"

16
:1

2

2'-0"
2'-0"

SADDLE

8"
 FR

IEZ
E

8"
 FR

IEZ
E

10
12

12
12

16
12

16
12

10
12

10
12

11'-7"19'-7"

12" TRIM

8" FRIEZE8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE 8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

METAL ROOF

BILTFAB
TIE-ROD
SEE DTL

THIS PAGE

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

8"
X4

2"
 T

RI
M

3'-6" 3'-0" 3'-6"

4'-0"4'-0"

4'-0" 4'-0"

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

DRAIN
WRAP

DRAIN
WRAP

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

SADDLE

STAMPED
CONC.

1'-5"

1'
-3

"

9'
-3

"

7'
-7

"

WHOLE
HOUSE

GUTTERS

10
12

GUTTERSGUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

34
'-9

 9
/1

6"

SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

GRADE

9
12

4.25
12

1'-3"

1'-3"

FROM
STOOP

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" 
FR

IEZ
E 12

12

7
1210

12

10
12

12
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

12" TRIM 12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM 14" TRIM14" TRIM14" TRIM

8" FRIEZE

8" TRIM

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE 8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M6"

 T
RI

M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6'
-0

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

7:
12

1'-3"
1'-3"

1'-3"

6"
 T

RI
M

12" TRIM

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

5.5
12

10" TRIM

1'
-0

"

8" FRIEZE 10" TRIM10" TRIM

5.5
12

5.5
12

5.5
12

10
12

17'-0"

5.5
12

5.5
12

BIRDS MOUTH/
SADDLE @ RAKE/

GABLE

10" TRIM10" TRIM10" TRIM

14" TRIM 14" TRIM

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS
GUTTERS

GUTTERS
GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT
D

O
W

N
SP

O
UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

39
'-7

 9
/1

6"

5/4X12

5/4X10

C
O

N
FI

RM
 D

IM
 O

N
 F

RO
N

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

MAIN

20"

2'
-2

"

HEADER
PER PLAN

24X24
STONE

TOP

STONE

16" BLOCK

6x6 POST

5/4X8

6/D3

ALUM SOFFIT
& FASCIA

*SEE ELEVATION & SECTIONS
FOR ROOF PITCHES, ETC

14
"

24X24
STONE CAP

STONE BELOW

BAND @
TOP & BOTTOM

PANEL

BLOCKING
AS NEEDED

20
"

PORCH COLUMN #2
SCALE : 1/2" = 1'-0"

2"

14"

12"

16 1/2"

COLUMN WRAP
MATERIAL XLD OR

CEDAR - SEE FRONT EL.
& COLOR BOOK

SMOOTH OR
CEDAR - SEE
FRONT EL. &

COLOR BOOK

ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

21 3/16"

36
"

2X8 BLOCKING
IN GABLE TRUSS

2X8 BLOCKING
BETWEEN
TRUSSES

GARAGE
PLATE

2'
-7

"
A

BO
V

E 
PL

A
TE

12
12

BILTFAB TIE-ROD
NOT STRUCTURAL

WALL LINE

A4

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

46



Sherwood.  We followed your suggested format of addressing code section 151.078 pertaining
to variances and provided as much supporting information and visuals as we thought
necessary to address the practical difficulties of building on this lot.
 
Take a look and let us know if you have any questions or suggestions before compiling this
packet for the next planning commission meeting
 
Thanks for your help so far
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    
 

From: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 2:25 PM
To: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: Re: 8 Sherwood

Below is the email communication from Bill Long pertaining to the tree agreement.  I’ll follow
up with the revised narrative
 
Good Afternoon Everyone, 
 
I want to update you on the plan that NOHOA has agreed to with Hanson Builders in the Sherwood Trail area.
 

1. NOHOA and Hanson Builders have agreed that Hanson will plant a total of twenty trees, each of a
minimum 2.5 inch diameter at breast height, on the five lots that Hanson acquired from the North
Oaks Company on Sherwood Trail in North Oaks.

2. Tentatively, these trees will be planted on Sherwood lots 1,2, 8 and 12. Taking a closer look at the
topography of the area and where the most ash trees were lost, we think planting along the west side
of lots 1 and 2 along Sherwood Road will improve screening for the entire area. Planting trees on the
south sides of lots 8 and 12 will ensure some screening of the homes on Red Maple Lane. Since lot 4
basically backs up to a wetland, we didn't feel the need to screen that area.

3. Hanson to consult with Steve Nicholson, a certified forester, of TreeBiz LLC on species selection and
exact locations of the plantings to optimize their benefit. The locations, but not the total number of
trees to be planted, may be modified based on Mr. Nicholson's input.

4. Neighbors on Sherwood Trail and Red Maple Lane are encouraged to collaborate with Hanson in

47

tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


planting additional trees at the neighbors' expense on their own properties to help mitigate the loss of
so many ash trees in the area to Emerald Ash Borer.

5. NOHOA (Bill Long and Julia Hupperts,) can assist in coordinating a walkthrough of the area with
Hanson, TreeBiz and neighbors in the area as the tree plan is finalized.

 
Also, though this wasn't part of the agreement, NOHOA is trying to find a way to get better pricing on trees to
be planted in this area. With such a large number going in to a single neighborhood, we may be able to get a
discount.  Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. I will keep you posted as to next steps
and timing.
 
Bill
 
Bill Long
NOHOA Secretary
BODLong@nohoa.org
651-276-4392

 
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    
 

From: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 1:43 PM
To: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: RE: 8 Sherwood

Scott,
 
Yes, please share whatever information you have about the tree removal and restoration
agreement.  It may help head off further discussion at the Council.
 
If you can get your narrative in by the end of the week, that would be great.
 
We are only going to have 3 council members at the 3/14 meeting, so we will push all of the
planning items to the April 11th Council meeting.

48

mailto:BODLong@nohoa.org
tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  April 11, 2024 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Garage Size in Excess of 1,500 Square Feet and 

Building Addition at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 16, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: January 22, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 16, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   April 11, 2024 

120-day Review Date:    May 15, 2024 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their February 29th meeting. One person 
spoke at the public hearing in support of the request. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to 
recommend approval of the request.  

REQUEST 

Mark and Anita Udager have applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a 
detached accessory garage structure on the west side of their property. The owners are also in 
the process of adding a 306-square foot sunroom addition to the home; that addition requires 
only a building permit and does not require a CUP. The detached accessory structure has a 
partially exposed lower floor constructed into a hill on the property. The proposed detached 
accessory garage is designed to accommodate the storage of a 22-foot boat and trailer. The 

49



 

 

total square footage of the proposed detached accessory garage structure is 1,296 square feet 
with 648 square feet on each floor. The existing attached garage on the site is 1,150 square 
feet, bringing the total garage space on the property to 2,446 square feet when 1,500 square 
feet is the maximum permitted by the code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well as the 
building elevations of the proposed structure. 

BACKGROUND 

The applicants previously applied for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to exceed the 
maximum combined garage size of 1,500 
square feet on the property located at 70 West 
Pleasant Lake Road North. The CUP was 
approved March 9, 2023, but the improvements 
were not initiated. The current request is a new 
CUP to accommodate a larger garage size.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Private garages in this zoning district are not allowed to exceed 1,500 square 
feet without a CUP.  

The 1.41-acre property is located along the northwest edge of Pleasant Lake. A site survey is 
attached to this report. The property is located entirely in the Shoreland Management Area.  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Shoreland  

The property is separated from Pleasant Lake by a public trail and open space parcel. Pleasant 
Lake is categorized as a Recreational Development lake. All structures and septic systems must 
be a minimum of 75 feet from the ordinary high water level (OHWL) of the lake. Chapter 153 
(Shoreland Management Area) defines a structure as “anything which is built, constructed, or 
erected, whether temporary or permanent, in or above ground.”  

The plans show the sunroom addition to the existing home is 103 feet from the OHWL and the 
existing home is 102 feet. The plans comply with the minimum setback requirements. The 
proposed detached accessory garage is located on the opposite side of the home from the 
OHWL.  

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

50



 

 

A certificate of zoning compliance is required from the City Clerk prior to initiating any work in 
the shoreland management area. 

Setbacks  
 
The proposed detached accessory structure and sunroom addition exceed the 30-foot minimum 
setback requirements at all property lines and street easements. 

Height 

The detached accessory garage is 34 feet and 11.5 inches in height and unchanged from the 
previous CUP approval. The detached accessory garage does not exceed the height of the 
principal structure in compliance with the City Code. 

Size 

The garage is similar to the previously approved project except that the building dimensions 
have been expanded. Total Floor Area is defined as the area of all stories, as determined using 
exterior dimensions, including garages that are not part of the basement, clerestory area and 
cover porches and decks. The floor area provided on plans has not been updated to reflect the 
increase in building dimensions. The new detached garage size proposed by the applicant 
results in a total detached garage floor area of 1,296 square feet.  

Garage CUP 

A garage which exceeds 1,500 square feet may be permitted after securing a conditional use 
permit. The applicant is requesting approval for a 1,296 square foot detached garage. The 
garage addition will result in a combined garage square footage of 2,446 square feet. 

The following specific CUP criteria must be met: 

1. The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet; 
 
The plans comply. The garage addition will result in a combined garage square footage of 
2,446.  
 

2. The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or 
structure; 
 
The garage will have the same exterior materials and design elements as the principal 
building.  

51



 

 

 
3. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12; 

 
The applicant has provided a FAR worksheet that shows a FAR of 11.76%. The FAR 
calculation must be submitted to the building official with the building permit to ensure 
compliance with the 12% FAR limit. 
 

4. No use of the garage shall be permitted other than for private residential noncommercial 
use;  

 
The garage will be used by the residents of the home for typical residential uses. The 
applicant’s narrative indicates that main level of the garage will primarily be used for storage 
of lawn and recreational equipment as well as boat and trailer storage.  

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
garage request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff has reviewed 
the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. The attached garage will have the 
same exterior materials and design elements as the main portion of the home. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The garage addition, which has been designed to blend in with the rest of the existing home, 
will not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
 
 
 

52



 

 

5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 
neighborhood; 
 
The described use of the structure will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns. The City engineer has reviewed 
the plans and has recommended conditions to ensure that impacts to drainage patterns are 
mitigated.  

9. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
10. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
The proposed use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
 
11. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 

53



 

 

Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  
 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Survey dated January 16, 2024 

Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative dated January 12, 2024 

Exhibit C: Building elevations and floor plans dated January 16, 2024 

 Exhibit D: FAR Calculation Spreadsheet received February 28, 2024 

 Exhibit E: Engineer Review Memo dated February 5, 2024 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of 1,296 square foot detached garage at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The request to allow a total of  2,446 square feet of garage area is approved in accordance 

with the application submitted on December 15, 2023 and additional information received on 
January 3, 2024, except as amended by this approval. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 
grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

54



 

 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 
6. All lighting on the accessory structure shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 

151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. A certificate of zoning compliance is required from the City Clerk prior to initiating any work 

in the shoreland management area. 
 
9. Applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 

 
ACTION 

  
Move to adopt the resolution approving the conditional use permit to exceed the maximum 
garage size at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 

55



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  
EXCEED THE MAXIMUM COMBINED GARAGE AREA FOR PROPERTY AT 

70 WEST PLEASANT LAKE ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 
Mark and Anita Udager, as Trustees of the Anita M. Udager Revocable Trust, the owners 
of the real property located at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road, North Oaks, Ramsey, County, 
Minnesota, and legally described on the attached EXHIBIT A (the “Property”), to allow 
for the construction of a detached garage on the Property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed new detached garage is 1,296 sq. ft. in area and the 
existing garage located on the Property is 1,150 sq. feet in area; and  
 

WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required to exceed a combined total of 
1,500 sq. ft. of garage (or accessory structure) area on any property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 
North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 
the City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, 
and does not have a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 
before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 462.357, subd. 3, on February 28, 2024 at which hearing all interested parties had 
the opportunity to be heard, following which the Planning Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, subject to certain 
conditions.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for garage space in excess of 
1,500 sq. ft., is approved for the Property subject to the following conditions: 
 
Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow construction of 1,296 square foot detached garage at 70 
West Pleasant Lake Road, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The request to allow a total of 2,446 square feet of garage area is approved in 
accordance with the application submitted on December 15, 2023 and 
additional information received on January 3, 2024, except as amended by this 
approval. 

56



 2 

 
2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied 

before the issuance of a building permit. The building plan application shall 
contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees 

abutting construction disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers 
installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed 
downstream of all proposed grading, in order to ensure proper 
containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be taken to 
maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation 
due to grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in 
the deposit of additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement 

of construction.  
a. Plans and all building constriction must be in compliance with the 

maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review by the Building 
Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant 
shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement prior to 

beginning any work on the Property. 
 

6. All lighting on the accessory structure shall be downcast and shielded in 
accordance with Section 151.031 of the City Code. 

 
7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

 
8. A certificate of zoning compliance is required from the City Clerk prior to 

initiating any work in the shoreland management area. 
 

9. Applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district 
rules and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 
are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 
Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 
 

 
  

57



 3 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 11th day of April 2024. 
      
 
 
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
 
Attested: 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator 
 
 

58



 4 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 
Tract P, Registered Land Survey No. 506, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 
PID: 19-028-24-24-0130 
 
 

59



60



61



WAYZATA, MN  55391
SUITE 102

FAX: 952.473.8222
Phone: 952.473.8777

275 EAST LAKE STREET

62

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT SHINGLES PER ELEV'S METAL ROOFS PER ELEV'S HARDIE SHAKE SIDING PER ELEV'S HARDIE BOARD & BATTEN SIDING PER ELEV'S 6" WNDW & DR TRIM BDS. PER ELEV'S 6" FRIEZE BDS. PER ELEV'S MIRATEC BANDING PER ELEV'S RAILINGS TO MATCH EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
12(MATCH)/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXIST. GAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
12(MATCH)/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12 PITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12 PITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  (or MATCH EXIST.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  (or MATCH EXIST.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FASCIA HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/4 MIRATEC FASCIA BOARDS. ADJUST OR TRIM AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL FASCIA / DIM DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1 1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UISSUE DATE:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDRAWING DESCRIPTION:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREVIOUS ISSUE DATES:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT 2024, ALEXANDER DESIGN GROUP, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UDAGER RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST PLEASANT LAKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH OAKS, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 JANUARY 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATIONS & ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH GARGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3



SLAB @ O.H. DOOR = 911.50 '

SLAB @ O.H. DOOR = 901.00 '

900.50 '

901.50 '

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

912.00 '
910.00 '

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

909.50 '

912.00 '911.17 '

WAYZATA, MN  55391
SUITE 102

FAX: 952.473.8222
Phone: 952.473.8777

275 EAST LAKE STREET

63

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - ALL WINDOW & DR. HEAD  - ALL WINDOW & DR. HEAD HGTS. TO BE SET AT 8'-0" UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITION - 306` 306` UPPER GARAGE - 576` 576` LOWER GARAGE - 576`576`

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FOOTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARVIN INTEGRITY WND. CODES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - SEE 'HANSON GROUP'  - SEE 'HANSON GROUP' STRUCTURAL PAGES FOR ALL ENGINEERING. THESE PAGES TO SUPERSEDE ANY CALLOUTS OR SIZING SHOWN THAT MAY DIFFER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - OFFSET EXTERIOR STUDS  - OFFSET EXTERIOR STUDS 1-1/2" TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF FOUNDATION WHERE EXT. FND. INSUL. IS APPLIED, EXCEPT WHERE NOTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0" X 8'-0" OVERHEAD DOOR WITH SIDE MOUNT OPENER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759-3W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 X8 0X8 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-9 1/2" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-14" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-2x10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.T. PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.T. PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 9'-10 1/2" CLG UPPER GARAGE 23'-0" X 23'-0" EPOXY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 9'-0" CLG LOWER GARAGE 22'-1" X 22'-6" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0" X 8'-0" OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 x8 0x8 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-18" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL LINTEL @ PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-9 1/2" LVL @ FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME WALL DOWN TO CONC. BEAM POCKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALLS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALLS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTINGS TO FROST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP FOOTINGS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP FOOTINGS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" SLAB LEDGE PER CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUGH-IN FUTURE UNIT HEATER.  TO RUN OFF BOILER SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES - PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SLAB - SLOPED TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SLAB - SLOPED TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXIST. GAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF CONSTRUCTION: : ROOF VENTS AS REQ'D. - 1/300. ASPHALT SHINGLES METAL ROOF - PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS.  - PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS. PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS. FELT PAPER w/ ICE & WATER SHIELD. FULL ICE & WATER @ ROOFS UNDER 4:12 5/8" OSB ROOF SHEATHING.  ROOF SHEATHING. WOOD TRUSSES @ 24" O.C. - ENGINEERED BY SUPPLIER. BAFFLE @ EACH TRUSS SPACE. R-49 BLOWN-IN INSULATION. POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. 5/8" GYP. BD. CEILING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOFFIT/FASCIA CONSTRUCTION: : MATCH EXISTING SOFFIT AND FASCIA GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL CONSTRUCTION: : SIDING PER ELEVATIONS. 2 LAYERS GRADE "D" BUILDING PAPER. 1/2" PLYWOODD SHEATHING. 2x6 STUDS @ 16" O.C. 1" SPRAY "U" FOAM INSUL & SEALER W/ FIBER GLASS BATTS. CONTINUOUS POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. - SEAL ALL SEAMS & PENETRATIONS 1/2" GYP. BD. - TAPED, SANDED, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION: : FINISHED FLOOR. 3/4" T. & G. PLYWOOD SUBFLOOR. FLOOR TRUSSES (PER PLAN) @ 16" O.C. UNLESS 16" O.C. UNLESS  O.C. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. SPRAYED U-FOAM INSUL. @ RIM R-21. R-49 BLOWN-IN INSULATION. POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. 5/8" PLYWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION: : CONC. PIERS OR HELICAL PILES - PER ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALL = = DEMO WALL = = PROPOSED NEW ==

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UISSUE DATE:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDRAWING DESCRIPTION:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREVIOUS ISSUE DATES:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT 2024, ALEXANDER DESIGN GROUP, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UDAGER RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST PLEASANT LAKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH OAKS, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 JANUARY 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR PLANS & SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADG

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4



64



February 5, 2024

Kendra Lindahl, AICP
City Planner

Via E-mail: KLindahl@landform.net

RE: 70 West Pleasant Lake Road
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Kendra: 

I have reviewed the proposed garage and other proposed improvements for this parcel and am 
recommending that the applicant provide us with an erosion control plan in conformance with 
the Best Practices Manual to control erosion in all disturbed areas.  

In addition, the driveway installation shall be coordinated with the City Engineer and NOHOA.  

Sincerely,
Sambatek, LLC

Michael J. Nielson, PE
Township Engineer

CC: Kevin Kress, Administrator

65

mailto:KLindahl@landform.net


 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  April 5, 2024 
 
RE: Septic Variance at 4 Dove Lane 

 

Date Application Submitted   November 13, 2023 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 5, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    April 5, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   April 11, 2024 

120-day Review Date:    June 4, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

James Christiansen has requested approval of a subsurface sewage treatment system (SSTS) 
variance to allow a zero-foot setback from the road easement where a minimum of 30 feet is 
required. The variance would allow a replacement of the SSTS at 4 Dove Lane, which is 
classified as non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500, Subp.4(B).  

66



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 29th. Other than the 
applicant, there was no one present to speak on this item. The Planning Commission 
voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the request. 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently developed with a single 
family home and a small shed. The property is 
located in the shoreland district for Gilfillan 
Lake.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density 
residential and is zoned Residential Single 
Family – Low Density (RSL). The 0.57-acre 
property is located at the southeast corner of 
Dove Lane and Edgewater Lane.  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Chapter 51 of the City Code establishes standards for SSTS. Section 51.03(3) requires a 
minimum setback of 30 feet from all property lines, wetlands and the nearest edge of any 
roadway easement. The applicant’s plan shows a zero foot setback from both Dove Lane and 
Edgewater Lane.  

Variance Standards 

Section 51.02(11) of the Code says, “Where conditions prevent the construction, alteration, 
and/or repair of a sewage treatment system in strict compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter, the property owner may apply for a variance following the procedures outlined in North 
Oaks City Code Sections 151.078 & 151.079.” 

Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered and a 
variance only be granted when it is demonstrated that following standards have all been met: 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

67



 

 

(1)(a) Their strict enforcement would cause 
practical difficulties because of circumstances 
unique to the individual land under 
consideration, and the variances shall be 
granted only when it is demonstrated that the 
actions will be in keeping with the spirit and 
intent of this chapter.  
 
The size and shape of the existing lot of record 
does not have another location for a new septic 
on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The 
location of water supply lines, structures, and the 
existing cesspools leave only this location for a 
new septic system.  
 
b) PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES means the land in question cannot be put to a reasonable 
use if used under conditions allowed by the official controls, the plight of the land owner is 
due to circumstances unique to the land in question which were not created by the land 
owner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 
The size and shape of the existing lot of record does not have another location for a new 
septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of water supply lines, 
structures, and the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new septic system. 
Approving the variance will construction of a new septic system and abandonment of the 
non-compliant system. It would not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
(c) Economic considerations alone shall not constitute an undue hardship if reasonable use 
for the land exists under the terms of this chapter.  
 
The variance requested is to replace a failing system. The variance is not based on 
economic considerations alone. 
 
(d) A variance may not be granted for any use that is not permitted under this chapter for 
land in the zone where the affected person’s land is located.  
 
The variance would allow a new septic system. It would not allow a use that is not permitted 
by City Code. 
 
(2) Subject to the above, a variance may be granted only in the event that all of the following 
circumstances exist:  

Figure 2-Site Plan 

68



 

 

 
(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the 
same zone or vicinity, and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances 
over which the owners of the land have no control;  
 
The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the small lot size, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  
 
(b) The proposed uses is reasonable;  
 
The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow replacement of the failing system with a new  
septic system.  
 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 
The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The existing septic system 
has failed and must be replaced. 
 
(d) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district;  
 
Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will simply 
allow them to replace their failing system.  
 
(e) That the Variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulties;  
 
The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on site. 
 
 (f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood; and  
 
The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, 
or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within 
the neighborhood. 
 

69



 

 

(g) At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce 
or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 
At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common ownership with 
contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce or avoid the 
nonconformity of the land.  
 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

Exhibit b: Site Survey dated February 5, 2024 

Exhibit C: KSD SSTS Design dated November 1, 2023 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff finds that the variance standards are met and that the new 
system will result in improvement to the local ground and surface waters by eliminating a non-compliant 
cesspool. 

 
ACTION 
 
Move to approve the resolution approving the septic variance, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission.  

 
 

70



 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2024- ____ 
 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING SETBACK VARIANCE FROM PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENTS TO 
ALLOW REPLACEMENT OF A NON-COMPLIANT SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT 

SYSTEM (SSTS) AT 4 DOVE LANE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Oaks (City) has received an application for a variance to allow a zero-
setback for a new SSTS to replace a non-compliant system at 4 Dove Lane; 
 
WHEREAS, the variance would allow a replacement of the SSTS at 4 Dove Lane, which is classified as 
non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500, Subp. 4(B)e; 
 
WHEREAS, the grading of the mound system is at a zero-foot setback and the soil absorption area is at a 
five foot setback from the adjacent private road easements where 30 feet is required; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the request at a duly called public meeting and, following 
a public hearing on February 29, 2024, voted to recommend approval.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Oaks that the 
variance is approved subject to the following findings and conditions: 

 
1. A variance to allow a zero-foot setback from the adjacent private road easements where 30 feet 

is required for an SSTS to replace a non-compliant system as shown on the survey dated 
February 5, 2024. 
 

2. The Council finds that the variance standards in Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code have been 
met as follows: 

 
a. Strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances unique 

to the individual land under consideration. The size and shape of the existing lot of 
record does not have another location for a new septic on this site and creates a practical 
difficulty. The location of water supply lines, structures, and the existing cesspools 
leave only this location for a new septic system.  
 

b. The size and shape of the existing lot of record does not have another location for a 
new septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of water supply 
lines, structures, and the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new septic 
system. Approving the variance will construction of a new septic system and 
abandonment of the non-compliant system. It would not alter the essential character of 
the locality. 
 

c. The variance requested is to replace a failing system. The variance is not based on 
economic considerations alone. 

 
d. The variance would allow a new septic system. It would not allow a use that is not 

permitted by City Code. 
 

71



 
 

2 
 

e. The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the small lot size, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  

 
f. The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow replacement of the failing system with a 

new  septic system.  
 

g. The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The existing septic 
system has failed and must be replaced. 

 
h. Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will 

simply allow them to replace their failing system.  
 

i. The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on 
site. 

 
j. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 

land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
k. At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 

ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to 
reduce or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  

 
3. The applicant must apply for a septic permit and receive approval prior to beginning 

replacement of the system. 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks on this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
 
Ayes:    Nays: 
     
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
Attested: 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  
 
TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  April 3, 2024 
 
RE: Septic Variance at 6 Badger Lane (city file 24-3/Landform file 24-004) 
 
 
Date Application Submitted   February 2, 2024 
 
Date Application Determined Complete: March 6, 2024 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:  March 28, 2024 
 
City Council Meeting Date:   April 11, 2024 
 
60-day Review Date:    May 5, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
 
Thomas Romanko has requested approval of a subsurface sewage treatment system (SSTS) 
variance to construct a the new  septic system that will be located partially on his property and 
partially on the adjacent golf course property. The ordinance requires all septic system tanks 
and treatment areas  be at least 30 feet from all property lines, wetlands and roads. The rock 
bed is approximately 15 feet from the property line and the mound would cross the property line. 
The variance would allow a replacement of the SSTS at 6 Badger Lane, which is classified as 
non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500, Subp.4(B).  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed this item at their March 28th meeting. Other than the applicant , 
there was no one present to speak on this item. The Commission voted unanimously to recommend 
approval.  

134



 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
The site is currently developed with a single 
family home. The home is surrounded by the 
golf course on the east and west and single 
family homes on the north and south.  
 
Zoning and Land Use  
 
The property is guided Low Density 
residential and is zoned Residential Single 
Family – Low Density (RSL). The 1.01-acre 
property is located in the northeast portion of 
the golf course.  
 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  
 
Chapter 51 of the City Code establishes standards for SSTS. Section 51.03(3) requires a 
minimum setback of 30 feet from all property lines, wetlands and the nearest edge of any 
roadway easement. The applicant’s plan does not show the exact setback dimension, but the 
rock bed would be approximately 15 feet from the east lot line where 30 feet is required. 
Additionally, the grading for the mound will extend into the golf course property. The applicant 
has been working with the golf course to obtain an easement for this encroachment. The 
easement document included in the packet has been reviewed by the City Attorney and must be 
recorded at the County prior to construction of the new septic system.  
 
Variance Standards 
 
Section 51.02(11) of the Code says, “Where 
conditions prevent the construction, alteration, 
and/or repair of a sewage treatment system in 
strict compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter, the property owner may apply for a 
variance following the procedures outlined in 
North Oaks City Code Sections 151.078 & 
151.079.” 
 
Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code requires that 
the following criteria be considered and a 
variance only be granted when it is demonstrated 
that following standards have all been met: 
 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

Figure 2-Site Plan 

135



 

 

(1)(a) Their strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances 
unique to the individual land under consideration, and the variances shall be granted only 
when it is demonstrated that the actions will be in keeping with the spirit and intent of this 
chapter.  
 
The size and shape of the existing 1.01-acre lot of record precludes another location for a 
new septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of the well, water 
supply lines, structures, street and the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new 
septic system.  
 
b) PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES means the land in question cannot be put to a reasonable 
use if used under conditions allowed by the official controls, the plight of the land owner is 
due to circumstances unique to the land in question which were not created by the land 
owner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 
The size and shape of the existing lot of record does not have another location for a new 
septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of water supply lines, 
structures, and the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new septic system. 
Approving the variance will allow construction of a new septic system and abandonment of 
the non-compliant system. It would not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
(c) Economic considerations alone shall not constitute an undue hardship if reasonable use 
for the land exists under the terms of this chapter.  
 
The variance requested is to replace a failing system. The variance is not based on 
economic considerations alone. 
 
(d) A variance may not be granted for any use that is not permitted under this chapter for 
land in the zone where the affected person’s land is located.  
 
The variance would allow a new septic system. It would not allow a use that is not permitted 
by City Code. 
 
(2) Subject to the above, a variance may be granted only in the event that all of the following 
circumstances exist:  
 
(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the 
same zone or vicinity, and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances 
over which the owners of the land have no control;  
 
The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the small lot size, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  
 

136



 

 

(b) The proposed uses is reasonable;  
 
The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow replacement of the failing system with a new  
septic system.  
 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 
The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The existing septic system 
has failed and must be replaced. 
 
(d) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district;  
 
Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will simply 
allow them to replace their failing system.  
 
(e) That the Variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulties;  
 
The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on site. 
 
 (f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood; and  
 
The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, 
or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within 
the neighborhood. 
 
(g) At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce 
or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 
At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common ownership with 
contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce or avoid the 
nonconformity of the land.  
 

  

137



 

 

Attached for reference: 
  

Exhibit A: Location Map 
  

Exhibit B: Application Narrative dated February 12, 2024 
 
Exhibit C: Site Survey dated December 15, 2023 
 
Exhibit D: SP Testing Inc. Design Report dated September 11, 2023 and Exhibit 
 
Exhibit E: Declaration of Grant of Easement 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based on the preceding review, Staff finds that the variance standards are met and that the new 
system will result in improvement to the local ground and surface waters by eliminating a non-compliant 
cesspool. 
 
ACTION 
 
Move to approve the resolution approving the septic variance, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission.  
 

138



 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2024- ____ 
 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING SETBACK VARIANCE TO ALLOW REPLACEMENT OF A NON-
COMPLIANT SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEM (SSTS) AT 6 BADGER LANE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Oaks (City) has received an application for a variance to allow a zero-foot 
setback from the property line for a new SSTS to replace a non-compliant system at 6 Badger Lane; and  
 
WHEREAS, the variance would allow a replacement of the SSTS at 6 Badger Lane, which is classified as 
non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500, Subp. 4(B)e; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grading of the mound system is at a zero-foot setback from the property line and 
encroaches onto the adjacent golf course property; and  
 
WHEREAS, the soil absorption area is at a 15-foot setback where 30 feet is required from the property 
line; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the request at a duly called public meeting and  voted to 
recommend approval of the variance application. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Oaks that the 
variance is approved subject to the following findings and conditions: 

 
1. A variance to allow a zero-foot setback from the property line and grading onto the adjacent 

golf course property to allow the SSTS soil absorption area at a 15-foot setback where a 30-
foot setback is required for an SSTS to replace a non-compliant system as shown on the survey 
dated December 15, 2023. 
 

2. The variance standards in Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code have been met: 
 

a. Strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances unique 
to the individual land under consideration. The size and shape of the existing lot of 
record does not have another location for a new septic on this site and creates a practical 
difficulty. The location of water supply lines, structures, and the existing cesspools 
leave only this location for a new septic system. Approving the variance will allow 
construction of a new septic system and abandonment of the non-compliant system. It 
would not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 

b. The variance requested is to replace a failing system. The variance is not based on 
economic considerations alone. 
 

c. The variance would allow a new septic system. It would not allow a use that is not 
permitted by City Code. 
 

d. The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the small lot size, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  

139



 
 

2 
 

 
e. The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow replacement of the failing system with a 

new  septic system.  
 

f. The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The existing septic 
system has failed and must be replaced. 
 

g. Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will 
simply allow them to replace their failing system.  
 

h. The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on 
site. 
 

i. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 
 

j. At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to 
reduce or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 

3. The Declaration of Grant of Easement for Ingress, Egress, and Encroachment for the portion 
of the septic system located on the adjacent golf course property shall be recorded prior to 
installation of the septic system. 
 

4. The applicant must apply for a septic permit and receive approval prior to beginning 
replacement of the system. 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks on this 11th day of April 2024. 
 
 
Ayes:    Nays: 
     
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
Attested: 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 

140



141



142



14
3



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



17
5



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



19
4



19
5



19
6



19
7



19
8



19
9



20
0



PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT
Deputy Matt 651-448-1890

Matt.lassegard@co.ramsey.mn.us

o 163 CALLS FOR SERVICE
 NOTABLE 

 1 Suspicious traffic stop at Spring Farm. No thefts.
 Several attempted mail thefts at East Gilfillan Road and Robb 

Farm Road.
 Damage to East and West Rec fields.  Likely suspect is a 16 year 

old resident with several driving related contacts with police
 21 Traffic Stops

o SAFETY AND SECURITY
 Housing Watch information. 
 Selling vehicles to private parties.
 DO NOT CALL DEPUTY MATT FOR IMMEDIATE ISSUES. 

201



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 
DATE:  April 4, 2024 
 
RE: An Ordinance Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding 

Solar Energy Systems 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 28, 2023. There was no 
one present to speak on this item. The Commission had a robust discussion about the 
draft ordinance. There was some support from Commissioners to reduce the minimum 
lot size from 10 acres to 3.5 acres and expand the areas where ground mounted solar 
arrays are allowed to the RSL district, but the majority of the Commission felt that this 
was a good first step to allowing solar.  The Commission voted 5-1 to recommend 
approval of the ordinance as drafted. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the July 13, 2023 City Council meeting representatives from Incarnation Lutheran 
Church spoke about the potential of installing a solar array in the northeast corner of 
their existing parking lot at 4880 Hodgson Road. The property is zoned RSM. 
 
A working group made up of Chair Cremons, Council member Azman and staff met to 
develop the ordinance amendments.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed a draft ordinance at the August 31st meeting. The 
Commission asked staff to provide additional information about how Gem Lake, Sunfish 
Lake and Grant address solar energy systems and staff has added those cities to the 
summary of other City standards attached to this report (Exhibit D). The Commission 
directed staff to change the draft ordinance to require a minimum of 10 acres for any site 
proposing ground mounted solar. The draft ordinance reflects this change.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their September 28th meeting and 
voted to recommend approval.  
 

202



 

 

The City Council discussed the draft ordinance at its October 12th meeting. The Council 
tabled the item and directed staff to provide additional options at the November meeting. 
At the direction of the City Council, staff reached out to Cedar Creek Energy (the firm 
working with Incarnation church), but representatives were unable to attend the 
November meeting in person. 
 
The Council tabled this item at the November 9th meeting and asked staff to ensure that 
the Cedar Creek Energy representative could attend in person rather than remotely.  
 
At the January 11th Council meeting Cedar Creek Energy presented information and 
answered questions. 
 
At the February 8th Council meeting, Brian Ross of Great Plains Institute was present to 
provide information and answer questions.  
 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
Ground mounted solar arrays are not currently permitted in the City. Section 151.022 of 
the City Code states that “In any zoning district whenever a use is neither specifically 
permitted nor denied, the use shall be considered prohibited.”   
 
Building mounted solar arrays have been permitted as part of a building with a building 
permit because such arrays are part of the structure. However, the Zoning Ordinance 
would need to be amended to allow a freestanding solar array.  
 
At the July 13th meeting, Council directed staff to prepare an ordinance amendment for 
consideration in the RSM zoning district only. The Council indicated that they supported 
this type of use as a conditional use accessory to a principal use if adequate screening 
can be provided. While the City Council did not specify a minimum lot size, the Planning 
Commission wished to limit the application only to parcels at least 10 acres in size. 
 

203



 

 

 
The draft ordinance was prepared using information from the Minnesota Solar Model 
Ordinance and a number of individual cities. The model ordinance (Exhibit C) is attached 
for reference. The ordinance proposes to formalize the approval process for building-
mount solar (which has been permitted) and add ground-mount solar arrays as a 
conditional use in the RSM zoning district.  
 

  

Figure 1 - Existing Zoning Map 

204



 

 

Lot Size and Zoning Districts 
 
The draft ordinance reviewed at the 
October 12th meeting allows 
accessory ground-mounted solar 
arrays as a conditional use in the 
RSM zoning district only in the side 
or rear yard on parcels at least 10 
acres in size. The parcels zoned 
RSM are located on the perimeter of 
the City. The Planning Commission 
discussed whether the minimum lot 
size should be 10 acres or 
something smaller. There are only 
three parcels in the City that are 
zoned RSM and are at least 10 
acres in size. Staff has provided a 
graphic (Exhibit F) showing parcels 
zoned RSM at least 3.5 acres in size.  
 
If the ordinance is modified to 
allow ground-mounted solar arrays 
on all parcels at least 3.5 acres in 
size and zoned RSM, RSM-PUD, 
RSL and RSL-PUD,  46 parcels 
within the City would meet the 
eligibility requirements for a 
ground mounted solar array 
However, several of those lots are 
in Red Forest Way South (only 
one of the lots proposed in Red 
Forest Way South phase 2 
exceeds 3.5 acres). 
 
If the Council reduced the 
minimum lot size to 2 acres,  279 
parcels would meet the eligibility 
requirements for a ground mounted solar array.  
 

  

Figure 2 - RSM parcels over 3.5 acres 

Figure 3 - RSM and RSL parcels over 3.5 acres 

205



 

 

 
1. The Council should first determine which zoning districts where a ground mounted 

solar array should be a conditional use.  
o The October 12th draft 

as recommended by 
the Planning 
Commission would 
only allow ground 
mounted solar arrays 
in the RSM zoning 
district. 

o The Council could 
allow in the RSM and 
RSL districts or could 
allow in RSM, RSL, 
RSM-PUD and RSL-
PUD or any other 
districts.  

o Council should provide 
direction to staff. 

 
Figure 5 - RSL residential lot example 

2. The Council should determine the appropriate minimum lot size.  
o Staff originally proposed a 3.5-acre minimum lot size.  
o Planning Commission recommended a 10-acre minimum lot size. 

Figure 4 - RSM and RSL parcels over 2 acres 

206



 

 

o This is a policy issue for the City Council. Research shows that the two cities 
that do have minimum lot size requirements are at 3 acres and 5 acres.  
However, most cities used performance standards not lot size to manage 
this accessory use. 

 
3. The Council should discuss whether ground-mounted solar should be allowed in the 

front yard of lots. The current draft limits them to side or rear yards. 
 
Landscaping 
 
The working group intentionally left the landscape requirements less prescriptive so that 
the screening and buffering requirements could be evaluated on a case-by-case basis 
as part of the conditional use permit application. 
 
There was some discussion at the October City Council meeting about a desire to limit 
tree removal. The current draft does not include such language, however, language 
discouraging or prohibiting large-scale removal of mature trees on the site could be 
added or a requirement to mitigate for removal of large trees for installation of ground-
mounted solar. 
 

• Council should provide direction. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The request from Incarnation church was to amend the ordinance to allow ground-
mounted solar arrays as a conditional use within the RSM zoning district. The 
Incarnation parcel exceeds 10 acres in size. If the ordinance is approved, Incarnation 
Lutheran Church could apply for a conditional use permit. The conditional use permit 
would require a public hearing at the Planning Commission and City Council action and 
would not be able to work through that project until June/July at the earliest making it a 
fall construction project.  
 

  

207



 

 

 
Attached for reference: 

Exhibit A: Zoning Map 

Exhibit B:  Transportation Map 

Exhibit C: MN Solar Model Ordinance 

Exhibit D: Summary of Other City Standards 

Exhibit E: Concept from Incarnation Lutheran Church 

Exhibit F:  Parcels in the RSM district 3.5 acres or more 

Exhibit G: Three site plan examples 

Exhibit H: Ordinance amending Chapter 151 as recommended by Planning 
Commission 

Exhibit I: Ordinance for Summary Publication 

 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
The Council has two options: 
 

1. Move to adopt the Ordinance Amendment, as recommended by the Planning Commission. If the 
Council choose this option, they would: 

a. Approve the ordinance (requires a 3/5 vote) and 
b. Approve the ordinance for summary publication (requires a 4/5 vote) 

 
This would allow ground-mounted solar arrays only in the RSM district, subject to several 
performance standards. The Council could adopt this ordinance and continue discussion of 
allowing ground-mounted solar in other districts as a separate item. This would allow 
Incarnation Lutheran Church to proceed with their project.  

 
Or 
 

2. Continue the item and direct staff to revise the draft ordinance and bring it back to the next City 
Council meeting for consideration/adoption. 

208



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

I-
35

E

Sherwood Rd

Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal
Pond

North
Mallard

Pond

South
Mallard

Pond

BOBO
LIN

K
L

N

SHADOW LN

SOUTH LONG LAKE T R

B
L U

EBIRD
LN

ISLA

N
D

RD

W
EST PLEASANT LAKE RD

WH ITE OAKS

LN

TH
RU

SH
 L

N

BASSWOOD LN

LO

ST
RO

C
K

L
N

EASTVIEW  LN

LO
N

G

VI EW LN

H
AY

C
A

M
P

R
D

B
L

U
E

C

R A NE LN

N
O

R
D

C
IR

C
L

E
R

D

R
E

D
M

APLE LN

A
SPEN

LN

N
O

RD

CIR
CLE

RD

NORD  CIRCLE  RD

NORTH DEEP LA KE RD

C
H

IC
K

A
D

E E
L

N

S
O

U
T

H
D

EEP
LAKE RD

WISHBONE
LN

CHARL EY
LAKE CT

L
A

K
E

C
T

L
A

K
E

B
A

Y

WEST LAKE DR

PE
T

ER
SO

N
   

PL

W
ILDFLO W ER WAY

ANEMONE

CIR

L
O

NG
M AR SH LN

CHARLES   LAKE   RD

HACKBER
RY

LN

C
R

EE
K

SID
E  LN

W
IL

DFLOWER

P L B
L

A
CK

OAK RD

GOLDFINCHLN

IR
O

N

W
OOD LN

ISL AN D
VIE

W
LN

CROCUS  LN

RE
D

  F
O

X
  R

D

R E D FOX RD

PARTRIDGE
LN

S AN

D
P

IP
E

R
LN

SN
O

W
Y O W

L
LN

NUTHATCH LN

CATBIRD CIR

HTS

R
E

D
F

O
R

E
S

T
L

N

N
O

R
T

H
O

A
K

S
R

D

H AW
K

L
N B

L
U

E
FL

A
G

C
T

FALCON LN

C
A

T
B

IR
D

LN

N
O

RT
H

O
A

K
S

R
D

W
O

O
DHILL LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

K
  B

L
V

D

PHOEBE  LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

N

E
A

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
LA

K
E

R
D

BENT TREE
LN

O
R

IO
L

E
LN

PHEASANT LN

EAST OAKS RD

DEER
HILLS
CT

D
E

ER

HILLS DRIVE

WHIT E P IN

E
RD

P
IN

E
 C

O
N

E
 R

D

M
ARSH

 RDG

LARCH LN

K

N
O L L

R
D

PIN
E

RD

PEARSON
PL

O
T

T
E

R
  LN

C
H

IP
M

U
N

K
 L

N

BA
D

G
ER

   
LN

SKI   
LN

SKILLM
AN

LN

B

UFFALO

R
D

DOVE LN

ROBB FARM RD

HERO
N

L
N

W
E

S
T

S
H

O
R

E
R

D

TH

O
M

P
SO

N
LN

BIR
CH

LN

Q U A

IL
L

N

SWALLOW LN

SUMMIT
HEIGHTS

SUMMIT
VIEW

SUMMIT LANE

SUMMIT
COURT

SUMMIT
CROSING

SUMMIT RIDGE DR

M

ALLARD LN

ROBB  F
ARM  R

D

BLUE G OOSE RD

L
ILY

P
O

N
D

R

D

W
R

EN
L

N

EAST GILFILLAN  RD

D
U

CK
PA

SS
R

D

TEAL
ISLAND RD

SQUIRREL LN

D
U

C
K

PA
S

S

RD

M
O

N
A

RC
H

 W
A

Y

CRESCENT LN

LE A F WING D R

RID GE

RD

MARTIN LN

RID
G

E
RD

MEADO W

LN

WILLOW RD

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
L

N

L
A

RKS P U R LN

L
A

R
K

SP
U

R
L

N

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

  L
A

K
E

  R
D

 

R
A

V
EN

R
D

S
U

N

SHINE
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

OVERHILL DR

EAST
PLEASANT

LA
K

E
R

D

DOG

W
O

O
D

L
N

W
O

O
D

D
U

C
K

LN

E
A

G
L

E
R

I D
G

E
R

D

D
E

E
R

L
N

N
O

R
T

H
  O

A
K

S
  R

D

S
U

N
SE

T
LN

BUFFALO RD

R
A

C
C

O

ON RD

SPARROW
LN

P
H

E
A

SA
N

T
LN

G
A

DW
A

LL
LN

C
A

RD
IN

A
L

LN

EA
ST

O
A

K
S

R
D

P O

PLA
R L N

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

L
N

B
LU

E
JAY

LN

BLUE SPRUCE
CT

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
R

D

C
O

LU
M

B
IN

E
L

N

EVERG
REEN CT

HILL 
FARM 
CT

HILL FARM CIR

HILL  FARM   CIR

WEST PLEASANT LAKE
RD

SPR
I NG MARSH

LN

RED PINE RD

RE
D

 P
IN

E 
 L

N

LAWTON LN

CAPAUL

W
OODS CT

BRA
IN

A
R

D
W

A
Y

F
O

S
T

E
R

PL

VILLAGE

C
EN

T
E

R
D

R

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

LN

B
U

C
H

A
L

HEIGH
TS

O
SP

R
E

Y
C

T

C
AT

B
I R

D
L

N

EAST
PLEASAN

T
LA

K
E

R
D

W
E

S
T

P
L

EA
SA

NT
LAKE

R
D

P
R

E
SE

R
V

E
TR

BLUE JAY
LN

BLU E J A Y
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

W
E

ST
P

L
E

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

H
IL

L
FA

R
M

C
IR

R
E

D
B

A
R

N
R

D

EVERG REEN
RD

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

  L
N

EAST  OAKS  RD

EA
ST

PLEASA

NT
LA

K
E

RD

HUMMINGBIRD
HILL

RO
BIN LN

THO MPSO N
L

N

NORTH
M ALL ARD RD

N
O

R T
H

M
A

L
L

A
R

D
R

D

P
IN

E
R

D

HAWTHORNE CT

EAST
PLE

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
  LN

DEER
HILLS
CIR

EAST O
AKS RD

DOVE LN

M
A

L
LA

R
D

RD

MINK LN

NORTH
MALLARD

CT

SKILLMAN
LN

SPRING FARM LN

SPRING FARM LN

EAST O R IO
LE

LN

BENT
TREE
CT

BLACK
LAKE
CT

BLAC
K

LAKE RD

RED
FOREST

W
AY

RED FOREST WAY

NORTH OAKS
RD

S
O

U
T

H
D

EE P
L AKE RD

EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

W
EST

PLEASANT LAKE RD

SU

M AC
LN

ISLA
N

D
R

D

ISLA
N

D
RD

SO

UTH
LO

N
G

LA
K

E
T

R

SOUTH LONG LAKE TR

PRESERVE
TR

B
LA

C
K

OA
K

RD

BLACK OAK RD

LO
N

G
M

A
R

SH
LN

P
ET

ER
SO

N
P

L

SCOTCH PI NE RD

S
C

O
T

C
H

P
IN

E
R

D

SCOTCH
PINE

LN

SCOTCH
PINE

CT

SCOTCH
PINE

CIR

DO
N

BUSH RD

SOUTHPOINTECT
RAVEN RD

MEADOWLARK
LN

W ILLOW RD

W
E

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
L

A
K

E
R

D EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

H
IG

H

CIRCLE

W
AY

WEST BAY LN

EAGL E

R
ID

G
E

R
D

E
A

G
LE

R
ID

G
E

R
D

SUNSET
LN

MAYCOMB LN

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

D

RA
D

LE
Y 

PL ALCO
TT CT

C
A

L
P

U
R

N
IA

 C
T

M
O

C
K

IN
G

B
IR

D
  C

T

TREE FARM LN

CRESCENT LN

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
C

T

RA
P

P
FARM

B
LV

D

M
O

N
A

R CH WAYM
O

N
A

R
C

H
L

N

RAPP FARM
L

N

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M

P LACE

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M
BLVD

SKI H ILL

RCM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RCM-PUD

RMM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RMM

RSL

RSL-PUD

Future

Red

Forest

RMH-PUD

RSM-PUD

R

RSL

RSL

RSM

R

R

RSL

RSL

R

RSM

R
RMM-PUDRSM

RMM

RSM

R

C

C/S

City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan

MAP 8
Existing Zoning

Districts Map

OS (Open Space)

RSL (Residential Single Family - Low Density)

RSL-PUD (Residential Single Family - PUD)

RSM (Residential Single Family - Medium Density)

RMM (Residential Multiple Family Medium Density)

RMM-PUD (Residential Multiple Family Medium
Density - PUD)

RMH-PUD (Residential Multiple Family High
Density - PUD)

RCM-PUD (Residential-Commercial Mixed-PUD)

C (Commercial)

C/S (Commercial/Service)

LI (Limited Industrial)

R (Recreation)

HP (Historic Preservation)

Shoreland District Boundaries

Source: City Zoning Map
as of 5 - 10 - 21

North Oaks
Boundary

¦

RSM-PUD (Res. Single Fam. - Med. Density - PUD)

209



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Sherwood Rd

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

City of North Oaks 

Transportation 
Features

¦

MAP 14

5-10-21

West
Pleasant L ake Road

West Pleasant Lake
Road

E. Pleasant Lk Rd

Ea
st

P
le

as
an

t La ke
Road

E. Pleasant Lk
Rd

N
orth

O
aks

R
oad

East Oaks R d

East Oaks

R
oa

d

Birch
Lake

Blvd

P
le

as
an

t
L

k
R

d

Wild Flow er W ay Long 
Marsh Ln

¿ ¿

Â

Á

'A' Minor Expander

Collector

Minor Collector

Other Arterial

Signalized Intersection

Primary City Access Points¿

Rail Lines (Freight)

Regional Bicycle 
Transportation 
Network (RBTN) Tier 2

2040 Traffic Volumes

Top number = current volumes
Bottom number = 2040 projections

5,500
7,200

19,700
21,300

12
,2

00
12

,7
00

7,
00

0
7,

90
0

210



Minnesota Solar Model 
Ordinance

Prepared by Great Plains Institute with support from Sunshot and the Energy Foundation

Photo by Katharine Chute

211



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 2

Model Solar Ordinance – Minnesota
Introduction

Minnesota’s solar energy resources are high quality and cost effective—as good as many states to our south 
and consistently available across the entire state. As solar energy system 
components have become more efficient and less costly, an increasing 
number of solar energy systems have been installed in Minnesota. 
Market opportunities for solar development have dramatically increased 
in Minnesota over the last five years, such that communities must now 
address solar installations as land use and development issues. Solar 
energy components continue to improve in efficiency and decline in price; 
large-scale solar energy is expected to become the least expensive form of 
electric energy generation within a few years, surpassing wind energy and 
natural gas in levelized cost of energy. 

But solar energy is much more than just low-cost energy generation. Households and businesses seeking 
to reduce their carbon footprint see solar energy as a strong complement to energy efficiency. Agricultural 
producers see their solar energy as an economic hedge against price volatility in commodity crops. Utilities 
see solar’s declining cost, high reliability, and free fuel as a means to put downward pressure on electric rates. 
Corporate, institutional, and municipal buyers are actively acquiring carbon-free solar generation to meet climate 
and clean energy goals. And innovative solar site designs are capturing habitat and water quality co-benefits by 
using solar with habitat-friendly ground cover to restore eco-system functions. 

Solar Energy Issues

Local governments in Minnesota are seeing increasing interest by property owners in solar energy installations 
and are having to address a variety of solar land uses in their development regulation. Given the continuing 
cost reductions and growing value of clean energy, solar development will increasingly be a local development 
opportunity, from the rooftop to the large-scale solar farm. Three primary issues tie solar energy to development 
regulations:

1. Land use conflicts and synergies. Solar energy systems have few nuisances. But solar development can 
compete for land with other development options, and visual impacts and perceived safety concerns 
sometimes create opposition to solar installations. Good design and attention to aesthetics can address 
most concerns for rooftop or accessory use systems. Good siting and site design standards for large- and 
community-scale solar can similarly resolve conflicts and create co-benefits from solar development, such as 
restoring habitat, diversifying agricultural businesses, and improving surface and ground waters. 

2. Protecting access to solar resources. Solar resources are a valuable component of property ownership. 
Development regulations can inadvertently limit a property owner’s ability to access their solar resource. 
Communities should consider how to protect and develop solar resources in zoning, subdivision, and other 
development regulations or standards. 

3. Encouraging appropriate solar development. Local government can go beyond simply removing regulatory 
barriers and encourage solar development that provides economic development, climate protection, and 
natural resources co-benefits. Local governments have a variety of tools to encourage appropriately sited and 
designed solar development to meet local goals.  

Model Solar Energy Standards

This ordinance is based on the model 
solar energy ordinance originally 
created for Solar Minnesota, under 
a Million Solar Roofs grant from the 
U.S. Department of Energy. It has been 
substantially updated several times to 
reflect address additional issues and 
opportunities for Minnesota communities 
and the evolving solar industry, last 
updated May 2020

212



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 3

Components of a Solar Standards Ordinance

Solar energy standards should: 

1. Create an as-of-right solar installation path for property-owners. Create a clear regulatory path (an as-of-
right installation) to solar development for accessory uses and - if appropriate - for principal uses such as 
large-scale solar and ground-mount community shared solar installations. 

2. Enable principal solar uses. Define where community- and large-solar energy land uses are appropriate as 
a principal or primary use, set development standards and procedures to guide development, and capture 
co-benefit opportunities for water quality, habitat, agriculture.

3. Limit regulatory barriers to developing solar resources. Ensure that access to solar resources is not unduly 
limited by height, setback, or coverage standards, recognizing the distinct design and function of solar 
technologies and land uses for both accessory and principal uses.

4. Define appropriate aesthetic standards. Retain an as-of-right installation pathway for accessory uses 
while balancing design concerns in urban neighborhoods and historic districts. Set reasonable aesthetic 
standards for solar principal uses that are consistent with other principal uses that have visual impacts.

5. Address cross-property solar access issues. Consider options for protecting access across property lines in 
the subdivision process and in zoning districts that allow taller buildings on smaller (urban density) lots.

6. Promote “solar-ready” design. Every building that has a solar resource should be built to seamlessly use 
it. Encourage builders to use solar-ready subdivision and building design.

7. Include solar in regulatory incentives. Encourage desired solar development by including it in regulatory 
incentives: density bonuses, parking standards, flexible zoning standards, financing/grant programs, 
promotional efforts. 

Different Community Types and Settings 

The model ordinance language addresses land use concerns for both 
urban and rural areas, and thus not all the provisions may be appropriate 
for every community. Issues of solar access and nuisances associated 
with small or accessory use solar energy systems are of less consequence 
in rural areas, where lot sizes are almost always greater than one acre. 
Large-scale and community- scale solar (principal solar land uses) are 
much more likely to be proposed in rural areas rather than developed 
cities. However, urban areas should consider where community- or 
large-scale solar can add value to the community and enable economic 
development of a valuable local resource. Rural communities should 
address rooftop and accessory ground-mount development, although 
the standards used in this model are designed more for the urban 
circumstances. 

This ordinance includes language addressing solar energy as an accessory 
use to the primary residential or commercial use in an urban area and language for principal solar uses more 
typically seen in rural communities. Communities should address both types of solar development. 

 

Solar development is not one thing 

Communities would not apply the same 
development and land use standards 
to an industrial facility and a single 
family home, merely because both are 
buildings. Community and large-scale 
solar development is a completely 
different land use than rooftop or 
backyard solar. Standards that are 
appropriate for large-scale solar may 
well be wholly inappropriate for rooftop 
solar and may unnecessarily restrict or 
stymie solar development opportunities 
of homes and business owners. 

213



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 4

Model Ordinance

I.	 Scope	-	This	article	applies	to	all	solar	energy	installations	in	Model	Community.	

II. Purpose - Model Community has adopted this regulation for the following purposes: 

A.		Comprehensive	Plan	Goals - To meet the goals of the Comprehensive Plan and preserve the health, 
safety and welfare of the community by promoting the safe, 
effective and efficient use of solar energy systems. The solar 
energy standards specifically implement the following goals 
from the Comprehensive Plan:

1. Goal – Encourage the use of local renewable energy 
resources, including appropriate applications for wind,    
solar, and biomass energy.

2. Goal – Promote sustainable building design and 
management practices to serve current and future 
generations.

3. Goal – Assist local businesses to lower financial and 
regulatory risks and improve their economic, community, 
and environmental sustainability. 

4. Goal – Implement the solar resource protection element 
required under the Metropolitan Land Planning Act. 

B.	 Climate	Change	Goals	- Model Community has committed to 
reducing carbon and other greenhouse gas emissions. Solar 
energy is an abundant, renewable, and nonpolluting energy resource and its conversion to electricity or 
heat reduces dependence on nonrenewable energy resources and decreases the air and water pollution 
that results from the use of conventional energy sources. 

C.	 Infrastructure - Distributed solar photovoltaic systems will 
enhance the reliability and power quality of the power grid 
and make more efficient use of Model Community’s electric 
distribution infrastructure.

D. Local Resource - Solar energy is an underused local energy 
resource and encouraging the use of solar energy will diversify 
the community’s energy supply portfolio and reduce exposure 
to fiscal risks associated with fossil fuels. 

E.	 Improve	Competitive	Markets	- Solar energy systems offer 
additional energy choice to consumers and will improve competition in the electricity and natural gas 
supply market.

 

Comprehensive Plan Goals

Tying the solar energy ordinance to 
Comprehensive Plan goals is particularly 
important for helping users (both Planning 
Commission and community members) 
understand why the community is developing 
and administering regulation. 

The language here provides examples of 
different types of Comprehensive Plan goals, 
and other policy goals that the community 
may have that are served by enabling 
and encouraging solar development. The 
community should substitute its policy goals 
for these examples. 

If the Comprehensive Plan does not include 
goals supporting local solar development), 
the community should consider creating a 
local energy plan or similar policy document 
to provide a policy foundation for solar 
development regulation (as noted in II.B) .

Metropolitan Land Planning Act

Minnesota local governments subject to 
the Metropolitan Land Planning Act are 
required in their comprehensive plans to 
plan for the protection and development 
of solar resources. Communities must then 
incorporate Plan goals in their local controls. 
This ordinance implements that required 
Comprehensive Plan element.

214



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 5

III.	 Definitions

Agrivoltaics – A solar energy system co-located on the same 
parcel of land as agricultural production, including crop 
production, grazing, apiaries, or other agricultural products or 
services.

Building-integrated	Solar	Energy	Systems	– A solar energy 
system that is an integral part of a principal or accessory 
building, rather than a separate mechanical device, replacing 
or substituting for an architectural or structural component of 
the building. Building-integrated systems include, but are not 
limited to, photovoltaic or hot water solar energy systems that 
are contained within roofing materials, windows, skylights, and awnings. 

Community-Scale	Solar	Energy	System	– A commercial solar 
energy system that converts sunlight into electricity for the 
primary purpose of serving electric demands off-site from the 
facility, either retail or wholesale. Community-scale systems 
are principal uses and projects typically cover less than 20 
acres. 

Community	Solar	Garden – A solar energy system that 
provides retail electric power (or a financial proxy for retail 
power) to multiple community members or businesses residing 
or located off-site from the location of the solar energy system, 
consistent with Minn. Statutes 216B.1641 or successor statute. 
A community solar garden may be either an accessory or a 
principal use.

Grid-intertie	Solar	Energy	System – A photovoltaic solar energy system that is connected to an electric 
circuit served by an electric utility company. 

Ground-mount – A solar energy system mounted on a rack or pole that rests or is attached to the 
ground. Ground-mount systems can be either accessory or principal uses. 

Large-Scale	Solar	Energy	System – A commercial solar energy system that converts sunlight into 
electricity for the primary purpose of wholesale sales of generated electricity. A large-scale solar energy 
system will have a project size greater than 20 acres and is the principal land use for the parcel(s) on 
which it is located.

Off-grid	Solar	Energy	System – A photovoltaic solar energy system in which the circuits energized by the 
solar energy system are not electrically connected in any way to electric circuits that are served by an 
electric utility company. 

Passive	Solar	Energy	System	– A solar energy system that captures solar light or heat without 
transforming it to another form of energy or transferring the energy via a heat exchanger. 

Photovoltaic	System – A solar energy system that converts solar energy directly into electricity.

Renewable	Energy	Easement,	Solar	Energy	Easement – An easement that limits the height or location, 
or both, of permissible development on the burdened land in terms of a structure or vegetation, or both, 
for the purpose of providing access for the benefited land to wind or sunlight passing over the burdened 
land, as defined in Minn. Stat. 500.30 Subd. 3 or successor statute. 

Differentiating Solar Uses by Size

Community-scale and Large-scale systems 
are defined here as occupying less than 20 
acres and greater than 20 acres respectively. 
Some communities will use a lower number 
(ten acres) and some a higher number (up 
to 50 acres). An ex-urban city would use a 
lower number and a rural county could use a 
higher number. Community-scale is generally 
a size that can fit into the land use fabric of 
the community without assembly of separate 
parcels. Some communities have chosen not 
to distinguish between community- and large-
scale, but use a single large-scale designation. 

Solar Definitions

Not all these terms are used in this model 
ordinance, nor is this a complete list of solar 
definitions. As a community develops its own 
development standards for solar technology, 
many of the concepts defined here may be 
helpful in meeting local goals. For instance, 
solar daylighting devices may change the 
exterior appearance of the building, and 
the community may choose to distinguish 
between these devices and other architectural 
changes. 

215



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 6

Roof-mount – A solar energy system mounted on a rack that is fastened to or ballasted on a structure 
roof. Roof-mount systems are accessory to the principal use. 

Roof	Pitch	– The final exterior slope of a roof calculated by the rise over the run, typically but not 
exclusively expressed in twelfths such as 3/12, 9/12, 12/12. 

Solar Access – Unobstructed access to direct sunlight on a lot or building through the entire year, 
including access across adjacent parcel air rights, for the purpose of capturing direct sunlight to operate a 
solar energy system. 

Solar	Carport – A solar energy system of any size that is installed on a carport structure that is accessory 
to a parking area, and which may include electric vehicle supply equipment or energy storage facilities.

Solar	Collector	– The panel or device in a solar energy system that collects solar radiant energy and 
transforms it into thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy. The collector does not include 
frames, supports, or mounting hardware.

Solar	Daylighting	– Capturing and directing the visible light spectrum for use in illuminating interior 
building spaces in lieu of artificial lighting, usually by adding a device or design element to the building 
envelope.

Solar	Energy	– Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form of heat or light by 
a solar collector. 

Solar	Energy	System – A device, array of devices, or structural design feature, the purpose of which is to 
provide for generation or storage of electricity from sunlight, or the collection, storage and distribution of 
solar energy for space heating or cooling, daylight for interior lighting, or water heating.

Solar	Hot	Air	System (also referred to as Solar Air Heat or Solar Furnace) – A solar energy system that 
includes a solar collector to provide direct supplemental space 
heating by heating and re-circulating conditioned building air. 
The most efficient performance includes a solar collector to 
preheat air or supplement building space heating, typically 
using a vertically-mounted collector on a south-facing wall.

Solar	Hot	Water	System – A system that includes a solar 
collector and a heat exchanger that heats or preheats water for 
building heating systems or other hot water needs, including 
residential domestic hot water and hot water for commercial 
processes. 

Solar	Mounting	Devices	– Racking, frames, or other devices that 
allow the mounting of a solar collector onto a roof surface or 
the ground. 

Solar Resource – A view of the sun from a specific point on a lot 
or building that is not obscured by any vegetation, building, or 
object for a minimum of four hours between the hours of 9:00 
AM and 3:00 PM Standard time on all days of the year, and can 
be measured in annual watts per square meter. 

Solar Resource

Understanding what defines a “solar 
resource” is foundational to how land use 
regulation affects solar development. Solar 
energy resources are not simply where 
sunlight falls. A solar resource has minimum 
spatial and temporal characteristics, and 
needs to be considered not only today but 
also into the future. Solar energy systems are 
economic only if the annual solar resource 
(measured in annual watts per square meter) 
are sufficiently high to justify the cost of 
installation.  The resource is affected by the 
amount of annual shading, orientation of the 
panel, and typical atmospheric conditions. 
Solar resources on a particular site can be 
mapped and quantified, similar to quantifying 
other site resources that enhance property 
value; mineral resources, prime soils for 
agriculture, water, timber, habitat. 

216



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 7

IV.	Permitted	Accessory	Use	- Solar energy systems are a permitted accessory use in all zoning districts 
where structures of any sort are allowed, subject to certain requirements as set forth below. Solar carports 
and associated electric vehicle charging equipment are a permitted accessory use on surface parking lots 
in all districts regardless of the existence of another building. Solar energy systems that do not meet the 
following design standards will require a conditional use permit.

A.	Height	- Solar energy systems must meet the following height requirements: 

1. Building- or roof- mounted solar energy systems shall not 
exceed the maximum allowed height in any zoning district. 
For purposes for height measurement, solar energy 
systems other than building-integrated systems shall 
be given an equivalent exception to height standards as 
building-mounted mechanical devices or equipment. 

2. Ground- or pole-mounted solar energy systems shall not 
exceed 15 feet in height when oriented at maximum tilt. 

3. Solar carports in non-residential districts shall not exceed 
20 feet in height. 

B.	 Set-back - Solar energy systems must meet the accessory 
structure setback for the zoning district and primary land use 
associated with the lot on which the system is located, except 
as allowed below. 

1.	 Roof-	or	Building-mounted	Solar	Energy	Systems	– The 
collector surface and mounting devices for roof-mounted 
solar energy systems shall not extend beyond the exterior 
perimeter of the building on which the system is mounted 
or built, unless the collector and mounting system has 
been explicitly engineered to safely extend beyond the 
edge, and setback standards are not violated. Exterior 
piping for solar hot water systems shall be allowed to 
extend beyond the perimeter of the building on a side-yard exposure. Solar collectors mounted on 
the sides of buildings and serving as awnings are considered to be building-integrated systems and 
are regulated as awnings. 

2. Ground-mounted	Solar	Energy	Systems	- Ground-mounted solar energy systems may not extend 
into the side-yard or rear setback when oriented at minimum design tilt, except as otherwise 
allowed for building mechanical systems. 

C.	 Visibility	- Solar energy systems in residential districts shall be 
designed to minimize visual impacts from the public right-of-
way, as described in C.1-3, to the extent that doing so does not 
affect the cost or efficacy of the system. Visibility standards 
do not apply to systems in non-residential districts, except for 
historic building or district review as described in E. below. 

Height - Rooftop System

This ordinance notes exceptions to the height 
standard when other exceptions for rooftop 
equipment are granted in the ordinance. 
Communities should directly reference the 
exception language rather than use the 
placeholder language here. 

Height - Ground or Pole Mounted System

This ordinance sets a 15-foot height limit, 
which is typical for residential accessory uses. 
Some communities allow solar to be higher 
than other accessory uses in order to enable 
capture of the lot’s solar resource when 
lots and buildings are closer together. An 
alternative is to balance height with setback, 
allowing taller systems if set back farther– for 
instance, an extra foot of height for every 
extra two feet of setback. In rural (or large 
lot) areas, solar resources are unlikely to be 
constrained by trees or buildings on adjacent 
lots and the lot is likely to have adequate solar 
resource for a lower (10-15 foot) ground-
mount application. 

Visibility and Aesthetics

Aesthetic regulation should be tied to design 
principles rather than targeted at a specific 
land use. If the community already regulates 
aesthetics in residential districts, this model 
language provides guidance for balancing 
between interests of property owners who 
want to use their on-site solar resources and 
neighbors concerned with neighborhood 
character. Substantial evidence demonstrates 
that solar installations have no effect on 
property values of adjacent properties. But 
where aesthetic regulation is used to protect 
community character, these standards provide 
balance between competing goals. 

217



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 8

1. Building	Integrated	Photovoltaic	Systems - Building 
integrated photovoltaic solar energy systems shall be 
allowed regardless of whether the system is visible from 
the public right-of-way, provided the building component in 
which the system is integrated meets all required setback, 
land use, or performance standards for the district in which 
the building is located. 

2. Aesthetic	restrictions	– Roof-mount or ground-mount 
solar energy systems shall not be restricted for aesthetic 
reasons if the system is not visible from the closest edge of 
any public right-of-way other than an alley, or if the system 
meets the following standards. 

a. Roof-mounted systems on pitched roofs that are visible 
from the nearest edge of the front right-of-way shall have 
the same finished pitch as the roof and be no more than 
ten inches above the roof.

b.  Roof-mount systems on flat roofs that are visible from 
the nearest edge of the front right-of-way shall not be more 
than five feet above the finished roof and are exempt from 
any rooftop equipment or mechanical system screening.

3. Reflectors - All solar energy systems using a reflector to 
enhance solar production shall minimize glare from the 
reflector affecting adjacent or nearby properties. 

D.	 Lot	Coverage	- Ground-mount systems total collector area shall 
not exceed half the building footprint of the principal structure.

1. Ground-mount systems shall be exempt from lot coverage 
or impervious surface standards if the soil under the 
collector is maintained in vegetation and not compacted.

2. Ground-mounted systems shall not count toward accessory 
structure limitations.

3. Solar carports in non-residential districts ar exempt from lot 
coverage limitations.

E.	 Historic	Buildings	- Solar energy systems on buildings within 
designated historic districts or on locally designated historic 
buildings (exclusive of State or Federal historic designation) 
must receive approval of the community Heritage Preservation 
Commission, consistent with the standards for solar energy 
systems on historically designated buildings published by the 
U.S. Department of Interior.

F.	 Plan	Approval	Required - All solar energy systems requiring a 
building permit or other permit from Model Community shall 
provide a site plan for review. 

Building Integrated PV

Building integrated solar energy systems can 
include solar energy systems built into roofing 
(existing technology includes both solar 
shingles and solar roofing tiles), into awnings, 
skylights, and walls. 

Roof-Mounted Solar Energy Systems

This ordinance sets a threshold for pitched 
roof installations that they not be steeper 
than the finished roof pitch. Mounted 
systems steeper than the finished roof pitch 
change the appearance of the roof, and 
create additional considerations in regard 
to the wind and drift load on structural roof 
components. If the aesthetic impacts are not 
a concern to the community, the structural 
issues can be addressed in the building permit, 
as described in this Toolkit. 

Reflectors

Unlike a solar collector, reflector systems 
do create a potential glare nuisance. While 
reflector systems are unusual, communities 
may want to include this reference as a 
precaution.

Impervious Surface Coverage

Rather than consider the solar panel for a 
ground-mount system as a roof, this provision 
recognizes that the ground under the panel 
can mitigate stormwater risks if it is kept in 
vegetation so that rain water can infiltrate. 
Any effects are deminimus for a small array if 
the lot is otherwise within coverage ratios.

Roof Coverage

National Fire Code standards recommend 
keeping solar arrays well away from roof 
edges and peak in order to enable some fire 
fighting access. Different fire departments 
have addressed this in different ways. 
Recommendations for solar friendly 
permitting that accommodate Fire Code 
recommendations can be found in the Solar 
America Board of Codes and Standards.

Plan Approval

This process is generally part of the process 
for obtaining a building permit. If the 
community does not issue building permits, 
it can be tied to a land use permit instead. 
For rural areas or cities without standards for 
rooftop systems, the plan approval section 
may be eliminated.

218



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 9

1. Plan	Applications	- Plan applications for solar energy systems shall be accompanied by to-scale 
horizontal and vertical (elevation) drawings. The drawings must show the location of the system on 
the building or on the property for a ground-mount system, including the property lines. 

2. Plan	Approvals	- Applications that meet the design requirements of this ordinance shall be granted 
administrative approval by the zoning official and shall not require Planning Commission review. Plan 
approval does not indicate compliance with Building Code or Electric Code.

G.	Approved	Solar	Components	- Electric solar energy system components must have a UL or equivalent 
listing and solar hot water systems must have an SRCC rating. 

H.	Compliance	with	Building	Code	- All solar energy systems shall meet approval of local building code 
officials, consistent with the State of Minnesota Building Code, and solar thermal systems shall comply 
with HVAC-related requirements of the Energy Code. 

I.	 Compliance	with	State	Electric	Code - All photovoltaic systems shall comply with the Minnesota State 
Electric Code. 

J.	 Compliance	with	State	Plumbing	Code	- Solar thermal systems shall comply with applicable Minnesota 
State Plumbing Code requirements.

K.	 Utility	Notification	- All grid-intertie solar energy systems shall comply with the interconnection 
requirements of the electric utility. Off-grid systems are exempt from this requirement.

219



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 10

V.	 Principal	Uses	– Model Community encourages the 
development of commercial or utility scale solar energy systems 
where such systems present few land use conflicts with current 
and future development patterns. Ground-mounted solar energy 
systems that are the principal use on the development lot or lots 
are conditional uses in selected districts. 

A.	Principal	Use	General	Standards

1.	 Site	Design	

a. Set-backs	– Community- and large-scale solar arrays 
must meet the following setbacks: 

1. Property line setback for buildings or structures in 
the district in which the system is located, except as 
other determined in 1.a.5 below.

2. Roadway setback of 150 feet from the ROW 
centerline of State highways and CSAHs, 100 feet for 
other roads, except as other determined in 1.a.5 below. 

3. Housing unit setback of 150 feet from any existing 
dwelling unit, except as other determined in 1.a.5 
below.

4. Setback distance should be measured from the edge 
of the solar energy system array, excluding security 
fencing, screening, or berm.

5. All setbacks can be reduced by 50% if the array is 
fully screened from the setback point of measurement.

b. Screening – Community- and large-scale solar shall be 
screened from existing residential dwellings. 

1. A screening plan shall be submitted that identifies 
the type and extent of screening. 

2. Screening shall be consistent with Model 
Community’s screening ordinance or standards 
typically applied for other land uses requiring 
screening.

3. Screening shall not be required along property lines 
within the same zoning district, except where the 
adjoining lot has an existing residential use. 

4. Model Community may require screening where it determines there is a clear community 
interest in maintaining a viewshed. 

Screening

The community should consider limiting 
screening of community- or large-scale solar 
to where there is a visual impact from an 
existing use, such as adjacent residential 
districts or uses. Solar energy systems may 
not need to be screened from adjacent lots 
if those lots are in agricultural use, are non-
residential, or have low-intensity commercial 
use. 

Community-Scale Solar or Solar Gardens

Community solar systems differ from rooftop 
or solar farm installations primarily in 
regards to system ownership and disposition 
of the electricity generated, rather than 
land use considerations. There is, however, 
a somewhat greater community interest 
in community solar, and thus communities 
should consider creating a separate land use 
category. 

This language limits the size of the garden to 
ten acres, which is an installation of no more 
than one MW of solar capacity. Communities 
should tailor this size limit to community 
standards, which may be smaller or larger. 

Appropriate Setbacks

The community should consider balancing 
set-back requirements and screening 
requirements for principal use solar. Since the 
primary impact to neighbors of large-scale 
solar is visual, screening becomes less useful, 
as the setbacks get larger (and vice versa). 

The setback distances provided here are 
general examples that should be modified to 
be consistent with other setbacks already in 
the ordinance. Excessive setbacks that are 
unique to solar land uses, or that are similar 
to high nuisance land uses such as industrial 
uses or animal agriculture, are unjustified 
given the low level of risk or nuisance posed 
by the system. 

220



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 11

c. Ground	cover	and	buffer	areas - The following provisions shall be met related to the clearing of 
existing vegetation and establishment of vegetated ground cover. Additional requirements may apply 
as required by Model Community.

1. Large-scale removal of mature trees on the site is 
discouraged. Model Community may set additional 
restrictions on tree clearing or require mitigation for 
cleared trees. 

2. The project site design shall include the installation 
and establishment of ground cover meeting the 
beneficial habitat standard consistent with Minnesota 
Statutes, section 216B.1642, or successor statutes and 
guidance as set by the Minnesota Board of Water and 
Soil Resources (BWSR). 

3. The applicant shall submit a planting plan 
accompanied by a completed “Project Planning 
Assessment Form” provided by BWSR for review by 
BWSR or the County SWCD.

4.  Beneficial habitat standards shall be maintained on 
the site for the duration of operation, until the site is 
decommissioned. The owner of the solar array shall 
complete BWSR’s “Established Project Assessment 
Form” at year 4 and every 3 years after that, and 
allow the County SWCD to conduct a site visit to verify 
compliance.

5. Model Community may require submittal of 
inspection fee at the time of the initial permit 
application to support ongoing inspection of the 
beneficial habitat ground cover.

6. The applicant shall submit a financial guarantee in 
the form of a letter of credit, cash deposit or bond in 
favor of the Community equal to one hundred twenty-
five (125) percent of the costs to meet the beneficial 
habitat standard. The financial guarantee shall remain 
in effect until vegetation is sufficiently established. 

d. Foundations - A qualified engineer shall certify that 
the foundation and design of the solar panel racking and 
support is within accepted professional standards, given 
local soil and climate conditions.

e. Power and communication lines - Power and 
communication lines running between banks of solar panels and to nearby electric substations or 
interconnections with buildings shall be buried underground. Exemptions may be granted by Model 
Community in instances where shallow bedrock, water courses, or other elements of the natural 
landscape interfere with the ability to bury lines, or distance makes undergrounding infeasible, at the 
discretion of the zoning administrator.

Ground Cover Standards

Minnesota has created a “beneficial habitat” 
certification, administered by the Board of Soil 
and Water Resources (BWSR) to enable local 
governments and solar developers to certify 
principal use solar as having achieved the co-
benefits of using the site as pollinator habitat. 

Establishing and maintaining native ground 
cover creates important co-benefits to the 
community or the property owner. Native 
grasses can be harvested for forage and 
wildflowers and blooming plants can create 
pollinator and bird habitat, and maintaining 
the site in native vegetation will build soils 
that can be turned back into agriculture at the 
end of the solar farm’s life. 

Site Design in Conditional Use Permit

Certain site design elements may be included 
in a community’s conditional use permit 
for community- and large-scale solar. Best 
practices for habitat-friendly solar site design 
include, for instance, that:

• panels be at least 36 inches off the ground 
to allow mowing and other maintenance, 

• panels be spaced to allow vegetation to be 
self-sustaining, 

• maintenance standards limit or prevent 
pesticide use. 

Financial Surety

Communities frequently require bonds 
or similar financial guarantees when 
infrastructure improvements are required for 
a development project. The beneficial habitat 
installation can be considered in a similar 
light. Establishing a self-sustaining pollinator 
or native habitat ground cover requires 
maintenance over the first 2-3 years, and 
some maintenance over the life of the project. 

221



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 12

2. Stormwater	and	NPDES - Solar farms are subject to Model 
Community’s stormwater management and erosion 
and sediment control provisions and NPDES permit 
requirements. Solar collectors shall not be considered 
impervious surfaces if the project is certified as beneficial 
habitat solar, as described in A.1.c.2. of this ordinance. 

3. Other standards and codes - All solar farms shall be in 
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal 
regulatory codes, including the State of Minnesota 
Uniform Building Code, as amended; and the National 
Electric Code, as amended.

4. Site	Plan	Required	- A detailed site plan for both existing 
and proposed conditions must be submitted, showing 
location of all solar arrays, other structures, property lines, 
rights-of-way, service roads, floodplains, wetlands and 
other protected natural resources, topography, electric 
equipment, and all other characteristics requested by 
Model Community. The site plan should show all zoning 
districts and overlay districts.

5. Aviation	Protection - For solar farms located within 500 
feet of an airport or within approach zones of an airport, 
the applicant must complete and provide the results 
of the Solar Glare Hazard Analysis Tool (SGHAT) for the 
Airport Traffic Control Tower cab and final approach paths, 
consistent with the Interim Policy, FAA Review of Solar 
Energy Projects on Federally Obligated Airports, or most 
recent version adopted by the FAA. 

6. Agricultural	Protection	- Solar farms must comply with 
site assessment or soil identification standards that are 
intended to identify agricultural soils. Model Community 
may require mitigation for use of prime soils for solar array 
placement, including the following:

a. Demonstrating co-location of agricultural uses 
(agrivoltaics) on the project site. 

b. Using an interim use or time-limited CUP that allows the 
site to be returned to agriculture at the end of life of the 
solar installation.

c.  Placing agricultural conservation easements on an 
equivalent number of prime soil acres adjacent to or 
surrounding the project site.

d. Locating the project in a Drinking Water Supply Management Area or wellhead protection area.

Site Plan

Solar farm developers should provide a 
site plan similar to that required by the 
community for any other development. Refer 
to your existing ordinance to guide site plan 
submittal requirements.

Stormwater and Water Quality Standards

Perennial grasses and wildflowers planted 
under the panels, between arrays, and in 
setback or buffer areas will substantially 
mitigate the stormwater risks associated with 
solar arrays, and result in less runoff than 
typically seen from many types of agriculture. 
The ground cover standards in Section A.3. 
will mitigate many stormwater risks, although 
soil type and slope can still affect the need for 
additional stormwater mitigation. 

Solar with native perennial ground cover 
can provide multiple water quality benefits 
when converting from most agricultural crop 
uses. Both groundwater (limiting nitrate 
contamination) and surface waters (reducing 
phosphorus and sediment loading) can benefit 
if the system is appropriately designed. 

Aviation Standards, Glare

This standard was developed for the FAA 
for solar installations on airport grounds. It 
can also be used for solar farm and garden 
development in areas adjacent to airports. 
This standard is not appropriate for areas 
where reflected light is not a safety concern. 

Agricultural Protection

If the community has ordinances that protect 
agricultural soils, this provision applies 
those same standards to solar development. 
Communities should understand, however, 
that solar farms do not pose the same level or 
type of risk to agricultural practices as does 
housing or commercial development. Solar 
farms can be considered an interim use that 
can be easily turned back to agriculture at the 
end of the solar farm’s life (usually 25 years.)

222



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 13

7.	Decommissioning - A decommissioning plan shall be required to ensure that facilities are properly 
removed after their useful life. 

a. Decommissioning of the system must occur in the event 
the project is not in use for 12 consecutive months. 

b. The plan shall include provisions for removal of all 
structures and foundations, restoration of soil and 
vegetation and assurances that financial resources will be 
available to fully decommission the site. 

c. Disposal of structures and/or foundations shall meet the 
provisions of the Model Community Solid Waste Ordinance. 

d. Model Community may require the posting of a bond, 
letter of credit or the establishment of an escrow account 
to ensure proper decommissioning.

B.	Community-Scale	Solar	– Model Community permits the 
development of community-scale solar, subject to the following 
standards and requirements: 

1.   Rooftop	gardens	permitted - Rooftop community systems 
are permitted in all districts where buildings are permitted.

2.   Community-scale	uses	- Ground-mount community solar 
energy systems must cover no more than ten acres (project 
boundaries), and are a permitted use in industrial and 
agricultural districts, and permitted with standards or 
conditional in all other non-residential districts. Ground-
mount solar developments covering more than ten acres 
shall be considered large-scale solar. 

3.	 Dimensional	standards	- All structures must comply with 
setback, height, and coverage limitations for the district in 
which the system is located.

4. Other standards - Ground-mount systems must comply 
with all required standards for structures in the district in 
which the system is located.

Prime Farmland and Agrivoltaics

Minnesota Admin. 7850.4400 Subd. 4 
has provisions for the protection of prime 
farmland when large electric power 
generating plants are located on lands 
designated as prime farmland. 

There are a number of mitigation 
opportunities for solar sited on prime 
farmland, such as co-locating agricultural uses 
within solar arrays (also called agrivoltaics). 
Groundcover that includes pollinator-
friendly plantings may enhance surrounding 
agricultural opportunities, or in the case 
of protecting drinking water or wellhead 
protection areas as described below.

Defining Community-Scale Solar

The acreage size for community-scale solar 
garden written here (10 acres) is the high end 
of project size for a one megawatt system, 
which is the maximum size of community 
solar gardens within Xcel Energy’s program. 
But other utilities have other size limitations, 
and community-scale could be defined as 
high as 10 megawatts (100 acre project size). 
Community-scale solar is the size that can fit 
in to the landscape.

Drinking Water Protection

In identifying preferred sites for solar 
principal uses the community should consider 
co-benefits of solar energy development. 
One such potential co-benefit is protection 
of drinking water supplies. Solar energy 
development may be intentionally sited within 
vulnerable portions of Drinking Water Supply 
Management Areas (DWSMAs)as a best 
management practice to restore and protect 
native perennial groundcover that reduces 
nitrate contamination of ground water 
supplies. 

223



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 14

C.	 Large-Scale	Solar - Ground-mount solar energy arrays that are the 
primary use on the lot, designed for providing energy to off-site uses 
or export to the wholesale market, are permitted under the following 
standards: 

1. Conditional	use	permit	– Solar farms are conditional uses in 
agricultural districts, industrial districts, shoreland and floodplain 
overlay districts, airport safety zones subject to A.1.5. of this 
ordinance, and in the landfill/brownfield overlay district for sites 
that have completed remediation. 

Example	Use	Table

Use	Type Residential Mixed 
Use Business Industrial Agricultural,	

Rural,	Landfill Shoreland Floodplain

Special 
(Conserva-
tion,	Histor-
ic Districts)

Large-scale 
solar

C C C C C

Communi-
ty-scale solar

C C C P P PS PS PS

Accessory use 
ground-mount-
ed solar

P P P P P P C C

Rooftop solar P P P P P P P PS

P = Permitted

PS = Permitted Special (additional separate permit or review)

C = Conditional

Blank Cell = Prohibited

Large-Scale Solar Conditional Uses

Large -scale solar should require a conditional 
use or interim use permit in order for the 
community to consider the site-specific 
conditions. The districts listed here are 
examples. Each community needs to consider 
where large scale solar is suitable in the 
context of its zoning districts and priorities. 

Solar as a Land Use

The above use table shows four types of solar development that are distinct types of land uses (two kinds of accessory uses, two 
principal uses), and a group of districts or overlays that are commonly used in Minnesota. 

• Rooftop system are permitted in all districts where buildings are permitted, with recognition that historic districts will have special 
standards or permits separate from the zoning permits. 

• Accessory use ground-mount are conditional where potentially in conflict with the primary district or overlay goal.

• Community-scale solar principal uses are conditional where land use conflicts or opportunity conflicts are high, permitted where a 
10 acre development can be integrated into the landscape, and requiring special consideration in shoreland and floodplain overlay 
districts. 

• Large-scale is prohibited in higher density districts and conditional in all other districts.

Both community- and large-scale solar is allowed in shoreland and floodplain overlay districts, because the site design standards 
requiring beneficial habitat ground cover not only ensure a low-impact development but in most cases result in a restoration of eco-
system services from the previous (usually agricultural) use.

224



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 15

VI.	Restrictions	on	Solar	Energy	Systems	Limited	–	As of (adoption 
date for this ordinance) new homeowners’ agreements, covenant, 
common interest community standards, or other contract 
between multiple property owners within a subdivision of Model 
Community shall not restrict or limit solar energy systems to a 
greater extent than Model Community’ solar energy standards. 

VII. Solar Access - Model Community encourages protection of 
solar access in all new subdivisions. 

A.	Solar	Easements	Allowed	- Model Community allows solar 
easements to be filed, consistent with Minnesota State Code 
500. Any property owner can purchase an easement across 
neighboring properties to protect access to sunlight. The 
easement can apply to buildings, trees, or other structures that 
would diminish solar access. 

B.	Easements	within	Subdivision	Process	- Model Community 
requires new subdivisions to identify and create solar 
easements when solar energy systems are implemented as 
a condition of a PUD, subdivision, conditional use, or other 
permit, as specified in Section 8 of this ordinance. 

Solar Easements

Minnesota allows the purchase and holding 
of easements protecting access to solar and 
wind energy. The easement must specify the 
following information:

Required Contents - Any deed, will, or other 
instrument that creates a solar or wind 
easement shall include, but the contents are 
not limited to:

(a) A description of the real property subject 
to the easement and a description of the real 
property benefiting from the solar or wind 
easement; and

(b) For solar easements, a description of the 
vertical and horizontal angles, expressed 
in degrees and measured from the site 
of the solar energy system, at which the 
solar easement extends over the real 
property subject to the easement, or any 
other description which defines the three 
dimensional space, or the place and times of 
day in which an obstruction to direct sunlight 
is prohibited or limited;

(more provisions, see Statute)

Source: Minnesota Stat. 500.30 Subd. 3.

225



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 16

 VIII.	Renewable	Energy	Condition	for	Certain	Permits

A.	Condition	for	Planned	Unit	Development	(PUD)	Approval	
- Model Community may require on-site renewable energy 
systems, zero-net-energy (ZNE) or zero-net-carbon (ZNC) 
building designs, solar-synchronized electric vehicle charging 
or other clean energy systems as a condition for approval of a 
PUD permit to mitigate for:

1. Impacts on the performance of the electric distribution 
system,

2. Increased local emissions of greenhouse gases associated 
with the proposal,

3. Need for electric vehicle charging infrastructure to offset 
transportation-related emissions for trips generated by the 
new development,

4. Other impacts of the proposed development that are 
inconsistent with the Model Community Comprehensive 
Plan.

B. Condition	for	Conditional	Use	Permit	- Model Community may 
require on-site renewable energy systems or zero net energy 
construction as a condition for a rezoning or a conditional use 
permit. 

IX.	Solar	Roof	Incentives	- Model Community encourages 
incorporating on-site renewable energy system or zero net energy 
construction for new construction and redevelopment. Model 
Community may require on-site renewable energy or zero-net-
energy construction when issuing a conditional use permit where 
the project has access to local energy resources, in order to ensure 
consistency with Model Community’s Climate Action Plan.

A. Density	Bonus - Any application for subdivision of land in 
the ___ Districts that will allow the development of at least 
four new lots of record shall be allowed to increase the 
maximum number of lots by 10% or one lot, whichever is 
greater, provided all building and wastewater setbacks can 
be met with the increased density, if the applicant enters 
into a development agreement guaranteeing at least three 
(3) kilowatts of PV for each new residence that has a solar 
resource. 

B. Financial Assistance – Model Community provides financial assistance to certain types of development 
and redevelopment. All projects that receive financial assistance of $________ or greater, and that have 
a solar resource shall incorporate on-site renewable energy systems. 

Renewable Energy Conditions, Incentives

The community can use traditional 
development tools such as conditional use 
permits, PUDs, or other discretionary permits 
to encourage private investment in solar 
energy systems as part of new development 
or redevelopment. This model ordinance 
notes these opportunities for consideration by 
local governments. In most cases, additional 
ordinance language would need to be tailored 
to the community’s ordinances. 

For instance, a provision that PUDs (or 
other special district or flexible design 
standard) incorporate solar energy should 
be incorporated into the community’s PUD 
ordinance rather than being a provision of the 
solar standards. 

Conditional use permits generally include 
conditions, and those conditions can include 
renewable energy or zero net energy design, 
but only if the conditions are clearly given 
preference in adopted policy or plans. Explicit 
reference to climate or energy independence 
goals in the ordinance and explicit preference 
for such conditions will set a foundation for 
including such conditions in the permit. 

Solar Roof Incentives

This section of the model ordinance includes 
a series of incentives that can be incorporated 
into development regulation. Most cities and 
many counties use incentives to encourage 
public amenities or preferred design. These 
same tools and incentives can be used to 
encourage private investment in solar energy. 
Communities should use incentives that 
are already offered, and simply extend that 
incentive to appropriate solar development. 

Some of the incentives noted here are not 
zoning incentives, but fit more readily into 
incentive programs offered by the community 
(such as financing or incentive-based design 
standards).

226



Minnesota Model Solar Ordinance 17

C. Solar-Ready	Buildings	– Model Community encourages 
builders to use solar-ready design in buildings. Buildings that 
submit a completed U.S. EPA Renewable Energy Ready Home 
Solar Photovoltaic Checklist (or other approved solar-ready 
standard) and associated documentation will be certified as 
a Model Community solar ready home, and are eligible for 
low-cost financing through Model Community’s Economic 
Development Authority. A designation that will be included in 
the permit home’s permit history.

D. Solar Access Variance – When a developer requests a variance 
from Model Community’s subdivision solar access standards, 
the zoning administrator may grant an administrative exception 
from the solar access standards provided the applicant meets 
the conditions of 1. and 2. below: 

1. Solar	Access	Lots	Identified	- At least __% of the lots, or a 
minimum of __ lots, are identified as solar development 
lots.

2.	 Covenant	Assigned	- Solar access lots are assigned a 
covenant that homes built upon these lots must include a 
solar energy system. Photovoltaic systems must be at least 
three (3) KW in capacity. 

3.	 Additional	Fees	Waived	- Model Community will waive any 
additional fees for filing of the covenant. 

Solar Ready Buildings

New buildings can be built “solar-ready” at 
very low cost (in some cases the marginal 
cost is zero). Solar energy installation costs 
continue to decline in both real and absolute 
terms, and are already competitive with retail 
electric costs in many areas. If new buildings 
have a rooftop solar resource, it is likely that 
someone will want to put a solar energy 
system on the building in the future. A solar 
ready building greatly reduces the installation 
cost, both in terms of reducing labor costs of 
retrofits and by “pre-approving” most of the 
installation relative to building codes. 

A community’s housing and building stock is a 
form of infrastructure that, although built by 
the private sector, remains in the community 
when the homeowner or business leaves 
the community. Encouraging solar-ready 
construction ensures that current and future 
owners can take economic advantage of their 
solar resource when doing so makes the most 
sense for them. 

Solar Access Subdivision Design

Some communities will require solar 
orientation in the subdivision ordinance, such 
as requiring an east-west street orientation 
within 20 degrees in order to maximize lot 
exposure to solar resources. However, many 
such requirements are difficult to meet due 
to site constraints or inconsistency with other 
requirements (such as connectivity with 
surrounding street networks). Rather than 
simply grant a variance, the community can 
add a condition that lots with good solar 
access actually be developed as solar homes. 

227



DATE 9/5/23
PROJECT NAME Ordinance Amendments - Solar Research
PROJECT NUMBER CNO23005
PROJECT LOCATION North Oaks, MN
PREPARED BY Nicholas Ouellette

R1, R2, R3, 
R4, R5, 
RR, M1, 
M2, M3

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

RR, R-1
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

NB, SC, 
GB, I

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

NB, SC, 
GB, I

Prohibited 
Use

A2, RR, 
RSF, R4, 
RLM, R8, 
R12, R16

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

A2, RR, 
RSF, R4, 
RLM, R8, 
R12, R16

Accessory

BN, BH, 
CBD, CC, 
BG, BF, OI, 
IOP

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

BN, BH, 
CBD, CC, 
BG, BF, OI, 
IOP

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

None 
specified

None 
specified

None 
specified

None 
specified

SOLAR STANDARDS RESEARCH

Gem Lake Solar not permitted

Grant

Must comply with structure setback 
(attached to principal or accessory 
buildings).
Height not to extend 5 ft. above roof.
Maximum 80% roof coverage.
Reduce glare to adjacent properties 
and ROWs.
Solar on pitched roofs facing 
roadways shall not have a pitch 
greater than 5% steeper than the 
roof.

Only allowed use on parcel with 
existing principal structure.
Setback 100 ft. from property line 
with an adjacent home. Must meet 
all other applicable structure 
setbacks for district.
Not allowed in wetland or shoreland 
overlay.
Footprint not to exceed 1,000 sq. ft.
Landscaping screening may be 
required. Minimize glare to traffic 
and other properties.

Certificate of 
compliance required.

No 
commercial/industrial 
solar energy system 
standards are provided.

STANDARDS
GROUND MOUNTED

Comply with maximum height 
standards.
Panels and equipment flush with 
roof.
May not extend beyond perimeter of 
exterior walls.
Visibility to commercial/industrial 
solar on flat roofs should be limited.

Not permitted in front yard.
30 ft. setback to interior side/rear lot 
lines.
15 ft. maximum height.
Max. ground coverage limited based 
on parcel/lot area.
Lots less than 3 acres may not 
exceed 400 sq. ft. ground cover.
Lots 3 acres or more the max. 
coverage may not exceed the 
foundation area of the residence or 
1,200 sq. ft. whichever is less.

ROOF MOUNTED

Andover

Chanhassen

Cottage Grove

Comply with accessory structure 
height standards for district.
Exterior lines shall be underground.
Screen with walls, fences or 
landscaping.
Setbacks:
- Non-residential comply with district 
setbacks.
- Residential only permitted in rear 
yards with a min. 10 ft. setback.

Eagan

Comply with district height 
standards.
Orient glare away from neighboring 
windows.
Mounted flush to roofs.
Not to extend beyond perimeter of 
walls.
Colors should be dark or blend with 
the building.

Pitched roof panels must be flush, 
flat roof panels may be angled.
Colors shall blend with building.
Comply with max. height for zoning 
district.
Glare away from neighboring 
windows.
Systems may not extend beyond 
perimeter of building.

Must comply with zoning district 
regulations.
Residential setback up to 1 ft. from 
edge of roof.
Commercial/Ind./Inst. setback 10 ft. 
from edge of roof.
Subject to district height standards.
Reduce glare to other structures, 
screening may be required.
Max 80% roof-surface coverage on 
south facing roof or entire surface of 
flat roof.

Must comply with zoning district 
regulations.
Must comply with accessory 
structure standards.
Ground coverage not to exceed:
- 30% of residential lot area.
- 70% of commercial/ind./inst. lot 
area.
Landscape screening from ROW's 
and adjacent lots to soften view.
Height limited to 12 ft. and may 
extend an addition 1 ft. in height for 
every additional 2 ft. of setback (up 
to 15 ft. total height).

Only permitted on properties 5 or 
more acres in size.
Not to exceed 15 ft.
Prohibited in front yard of properties 
in MUSA.
Comply with district setback 
standards.

Community solar 
standards.
Color does not need to 
match.

NOTES

Standards for 
decommissioning.
Wall-mounted systems 
permitted.
Heliostats prohibited.

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTSRESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
CITY GROUND MOUNTEDROOF MOUNTEDGROUND MOUNTEDROOF MOUNTED

Landform®, SensiblyGreen® and Site to Finish® are registered
 service marks of Landform Professional Services, LLC. 1

228



STANDARDS
GROUND MOUNTEDROOF MOUNTED NOTES

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTSRESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
CITY GROUND MOUNTEDROOF MOUNTEDGROUND MOUNTEDROOF MOUNTED

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts Conditional 
Use Permit All districts

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

B1, B2, B3, 
I-1, PID

Permitted 
Accessory 
Use in 
parking lot

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Structure

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Use

All districts
Permitted 
Accessory 
Structure

Lake Elmo

Minnetonka

St. Louis Park

Permitted in all districts where 
buildings are permitted.
Commercial rooftop solar shall be 
placed to limit visibility from the 
ROW or blend into roof design.

Must comply with all location, 
setback, size and height 
requirements of the attached 
structure.

Must comply with dimensional 
standards applicable to the attached 
structure.
May extend no more than 3 ft. 
beyond height of roof. (10 ft. for flat 
roof).
Setback 1 ft. from perimeter of roof 
(3 ft. for flat roof with no parapet).

Not permitted in front yard or side 
yard abutting public street, unless 
situated over parking areas.
Setback 3 ft. from non-residential lot 
lines.
Max. 20 ft. in height.
Area for solar system to be included 
in max. allowed size for accessory 
structures.
Frame shall be constructed of 
permanent materials.

Must follow parking lot setback 
requirements and not disrupt 
required parking lot design.
Height: drive aisle clearance of 13.5 
ft. not to exceed 20 ft. in height or 
the principal structure height.
Structures may not have enclosed 
walls.

Permitted in all districts where 
buildings are permitted.
Comply with accessory setback, 
height and lot coverage restrictions.
Any foundation, compacted soil or 
component of solar resting on 
ground counts to impervious surface 
coverage.
Solar systems 6 sq. ft. or less are 
exempt from zoning district setback 
requirements.

Glare should be 
minimized, may 
required plant materials.
City owned solar may 
be installed within the 
ROW and are exempt 
from other standards in 
solar section. 
Abandonment 
standards.

Abandonment 
standards.
Minimize glare to 
adjacent/nearby 
properties.

SPREADSHEET TITLE 2

229



 

 

Cedar Creek Energy 
3155 104th Ln NE  
Blaine, MN 55449 

763-432-5261 
DATE.REV 

 
 

 

230



 

 

Cedar Creek Energy 
3155 104th Ln NE  
Blaine, MN 55449 

763-432-5261 
DATE.REV 

 

 
 

 

231



 

 

Cedar Creek Energy 
3155 104th Ln NE  
Blaine, MN 55449 

763-432-5261 
DATE.REV 

 

232



Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal Pond

North Mallard Pond

South Mallard Pond

City of North Oaks 

RSM Parcels Greater
than 3.5 Acres

MAP

Updated 9/19/23
Source: Sambatek/HR Green

SH
OR

EV
IEW

 IN
TE

RC
EP

TO
R

FOREST LAKE INTERCEPTOR

Parcels

¦
233



4880 Hodgson

Personal Property

Tax Parcels

Cities

County Offices

2022 Aerial
Red:   Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:  Band_3

11/9/2023, 3:27:59 PM
0 110 22055 ft

0 30 6015 m

1:1,200

Ramsey County

Ramsey County MN

Subject Property (11.10-acres)

150 x 140 ft. Solar Array

234



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, REGARDING 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 151.051  Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 
151, Section 151.051 of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended to add Section 
151.051(D)(3) as follows. The underlined text shows the added language: 
 
§ 151.051 RSM - RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILY MEDIUM DENSITY DISTRICT. (D) 
Conditional uses. The following conditional uses may be permitted, but only after securing a 
conditional use permit in accordance with § 151.076: 
 
(3) Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems that meet the performance standards found in § 
151.035. 
 

Section Two.  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 151.052  Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 
151, Section 151.052 of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended  as follows. The underlined 
text shows the added language:  
 
(D) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses may be permitted, but only after securing a 
conditional use permit in accordance with § 151.076: all uses that are permitted conditional uses 
in the Residential Single-Family Medium Density District in § 151.051(D), except for Ground 
Mounted Solar Energy Systems. 

 

Section Three.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment Adding Section 151.035:  Title XV, 
Chapter 151, of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended to add § 151.035 as follows. The 
underlined text shows the added language:  

 

§151.035 Solar Energy Systems  
 
(A) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to regulate the placement, construction and 

modification of solar energy systems in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 
public, while not unreasonably interfering with the development of solar energy systems in the 
City. Specifically, the purposes of this section are: 

 

235



(1) To meet the goals of the Comprehensive Plan and preserve the health, safety and welfare 
of the community by promoting the safe, effective and efficient use of solar energy 
systems.  
 

(2) To regulate the location of solar energy systems. 
 

(3) To protect residential areas and land uses from potential adverse impacts of solar energy 
systems. 
 

(4) To minimize adverse visual impacts of solar energy systems and facilities through design, 
siting, landscaping, and screening. 
 

(5) To avoid adverse impacts to adjacent properties caused by solar energy systems by 
ensuring that those structures are soundly and carefully designed, constructed, modified, 
maintained and promptly removed when no longer used. 
 

(6) To ensure that solar energy systems are compatible with surrounding land uses. 
 
(B) Definitions.  
 
BUILDING-INTEGRATED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM. A solar energy system that is an 
integral part of a principal or accessory building, rather than a separate mechanical device, 
replacing or substituting for an architectural or structural component of the building. Building-
integrated systems include, but are not limited to, photovoltaic or hot water solar energy systems 
that are contained within roofing materials, windows, skylights, and awnings.  
 
GRID-INTERTIE SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM. A photovoltaic solar energy system that is 
connected to an electric circuit served by an electric utility company.  
 
GROUND MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM. A solar energy system mounted on a rack 
or pole that rests on or is attached to the ground. Ground-mount systems are accessory to the 
principal use and allowed only with a conditional use permit.  
 
PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM. A solar energy system that converts solar energy directly into 
electricity.  
 
ROOF MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM. A solar energy system mounted on a rack that 
is fastened to or ballasted on the roof of a structure.  
 
SOLAR ACCESS. Unobstructed access to direct sunlight on a lot or building through the entire 
year, including access across adjacent parcel air rights, for the purpose of capturing direct sunlight 
to operate a solar energy system.  
 

236



SOLAR COLLECTOR. The panel or device in a solar energy system that collects solar radiant 
energy and transforms it into thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy. The collector 
does not include frames, supports, or mounting hardware.  
 
SOLAR ENERGY. Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form of heat 
or light by a solar collector.  
 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM. A device, array of devices, or structural design feature, the purpose 
of which is to provide for generation or storage of electricity from sunlight, or the collection, 
storage and distribution of solar energy for space heating or cooling, daylight for interior lighting, 
or water heating.  
 
(C) Permitted Accessory Use.  
 

(1) Roof Mounted and Building-Integrated Solar Energy Systems are a permitted accessory 
use in all zoning districts where structures of any sort are allowed subject to the following 
standards: 

 
(a) Such systems must comply with the building code and current City ordinances and 

regulations. 
 

(b) Building-Integrated or Roof Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall not exceed the 
maximum allowed height for a building or roof in any zoning district. 

 
(2) Solar Collector devices less than two (2) square feet in area and generally used for garden 

decoration, exterior accent lighting, lawns, and flagpoles, are allowed in all zoning districts. 
 
(D) Ground-Mounted Solar Energy Systems. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems are a 

conditional use in the RSM zoning district, subject to the following standards: 
 

1. Location and Lot Size Requirements.  
 

(a) The lot is a minimum of 10 acres in size. 

 
(b) Ground Mounted Solar Systems must be located entirely in the side or rear yard of 

the lot. 
 

(c) Ground Mounted Solar Systems may be located within a parking lot provided the 
applicant can provide evidence that adequate on-site parking is available to serve 
the property and the structure will not disrupt required parking lot spaces or drive 
aisles. 

 

237



2. Setbacks. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems must comply with the required 30-
foot minimum structure setback from all property lines. Ground Mounted Solar Energy 
Systems may not extend into the side or rear yard setback when oriented at minimum 
design tilt. 

 
3. Height. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall not exceed 12 feet in height. 

Height shall be measured from the top of the grade to the highest point of the structure 
at its maximum designed height. 

 
4. Visibility. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall be designed to minimize 

visual impacts from the public right-of-way and adjacent property.  
 

5. Glare. All solar energy systems shall minimize glare affecting adjacent or nearby 
properties. Where necessary, screening may be required to address glare. 

 
6. System Size. The total collector area of Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall 

not be larger than half the building footprint of the principal structure.  
 

7. Lot Coverage. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall be exempt from lot 
coverage limitations if the soil under the Solar Collector is maintained in vegetation.  
 

8. Accessory Structure Exemption. Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall not be 
considered an accessory structure for the purpose of accessory structures size and 
number limitations.  
 

9. Landscaping.  
(a) Where possible, a mix of pollinator and native groundcover mix should be 

provided beneath the solar collectors to provide native perennial vegetation 
and foraging habitat beneficial to gamebirds, songbirds, and pollinators and 
reduce stormwater runoff and erosion at the solar generation site, subject to 
the standards of Minnesota State Statutes §216B.1642. 
 

(b) A mix of deciduous and evergreen trees and shrubs shall be provided to 
buffer the panels from adjacent properties. Natural looking and effective 
screening is desired, however, as part of the conditional use permit, the City 
may permit fences in addition to or in lieu of landscaping to provide 
appropriate screening from adjacent public rights-of-way and neighboring 
properties. 

 

10. Conditional Use. The conditional use permit shall be subject to the procedures and 
standards in Section 151.076 (Conditional Use Permits) of the City Code. 

 

238



(E) Plan Approval Required. All Building-Integrated or Roof Mounted Solar Energy Systems 
shall require a building permit and electrical permit. All Ground Mounted Solar Energy 
Systems shall require a conditional use permit,  building permit and electrical permit. 

 
(1) Plan Applications. Plan applications for solar energy systems shall be accompanied by to-

scale horizontal and vertical (elevation) drawings. The drawings must show the location of 
the system on the building for Building-Integrated or Roof Mounted Solar Energy Systems  
and a site plan showing all property lines and setbacks must be provided for Ground 
Mounted Solar Energy Systems.  
 

(2) Plan Approvals. Applications for Building-Integrated or Roof Mounted systems that meet 
the design requirements of this section are permitted subject to all requirements of this 
section. A building permit is still required for all such systems. 
 

(3) Approved Solar Components. Electric solar energy system components must have a UL 
or equivalent listing and solar hot water systems must have an SRCC rating.  
 

(4) Compliance with Building Code. All solar energy systems shall comply with the State of 
Minnesota Building Code, as applicable, and solar thermal systems shall comply with 
HVAC-related requirements of the Energy Code.  
 

(5) Compliance with State Electric Code. All photovoltaic systems shall comply with the 
Minnesota State Electric Code.  
 

(6) Compliance with State Plumbing Code. Solar thermal systems shall comply with 
applicable Minnesota State Plumbing Code requirements.  
 

(7) Utility Notification. All grid-intertie solar energy systems shall comply with the 
interconnection requirements of the electric utility. Off-grid systems are exempt from this 
requirement. 
 

(8) Expiration. If any solar energy system remains nonfunctional or inoperative for a 
continuous period of twelve (12) months, the system shall be deemed to be abandoned and 
shall constitute a public nuisance. The owner must remove the abandoned system at their 
expense. Removal shall include the entire structure, including transmission equipment and 
footings. 

 
Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 

adoption and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the 11th day of April, 2024. 

 

239



      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 
City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on ________________, 2024) 

240



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY,  MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE 

NO. 2024-___ , AN ORDINANCE AMENDING NORTH OAKS CITY CODE TITLE XV, 
CHAPTER 151, REGARDING SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 11, 2024, the City Council of the City of North Oaks, Ramsey 
County, Minnesota (“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 2024-______, an Ordinance Amending City 
Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Solar Energy Systems; and   
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 412.191, subd. 4, the Council may, by a 4/5ths 
vote, direct that only the title and a summary of the ordinance be published; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of North Oaks has reviewed the summary of 
Ordinance No. 2024-____ which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of North Oaks has determined that publication 
of the title and a summary of Ordinance No. 2024-___ would clearly inform the public of the intent 
of the ordinance; and   
 

WHEREAS, due to the length of Ordinance No. 2024-____ the City Council desires to 
publish a summary of the Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by a vote of at least 4/5ths of its members, 

that the City Council of the City of North Oaks hereby: 
 

1. Approves the text of the summary of Ordinance No. 2024-__ attached as Exhibit 
A and authorizes the publication of the summary shown in Exhibit A in lieu of 
publication of the entirety of Ordinance No. 2024-___  in the City’s official 
newspaper.  
 

2. Directs the City Clerk to ensure that a full and complete printed copy of 
Ordinance No. 2024-___is available for inspection during regular business hours 
at the office of the North Oaks City Clerk, by standard mail, or by electronic 
mail.  
 

3. Directs the City Clerk to file the executed Ordinance No. 2024-____ upon the 
books and records of the City along with proof of publication.  

 
This resolution is passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks, 

Ramsey County, Minnesota this 11th day of April, 2024. 

241



 
CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 
 

By:   
Krista Wolter 
Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 
 
 

By:    
Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

242



EXHIBIT A 
 

SUMMARY PUBLICATION 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-___ 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, 

REGARDING SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
 

On April 11, 2024, the City Council of the City of North Oaks (“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 
2024-_____, (“Ordinance”) an Ordinance Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding 
Solar Energy Systems. 
 
The Ordinance adds ground mounted solar energy systems as a conditional use within the RSM zoning 
district and adds section 151.035, Solar Energy Systems, to the zoning ordinance. Section 151.035 adds 
various definitions and performance standards for a variety of solar energy systems.  
 
It is hereby determined that publication of this title and summary will clearly inform the public of 
the intent and effect of Ordinance No. 2024-___ and it is directed that only the above title and 
summary of Ordinance No. 2024-___conforming to Minn. Stat. Sec. 331A.01 be published, with 
the following: 

NOTICE 
A printed copy of the full text of Ordinance No. 2024-___ is available for public inspection by any 
person during regular office hours at the office of the North Oaks City Clerk, 100 Village Center 
Drive, # 230, North Oaks MN 55127, by standard mail, or by electronic mail, and at any other public 
location which the Council designates. 

243



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 
DATE:  April 4, 2024 
 
RE: Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Building Height 

and Setback Standards In The RSL- Residential Single-Family Low 
Density District 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
The planning commission meeting held a public hearing at their February 29, 2024 
meeting. There was no one present to speak on this item.  
 
The Commission discussed the draft language. Two Commissioners felt that the 6 foot 
limit in 7(c)iii was too restrictive and supported 8 feet.  After discussion, the Commission 
voted 6-1 to recommend approval of the ordinance amendment as drafted.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A working group made up of Chair Cremons, Council member Azman and staff is meeting monthly to 
address a number of provisions in the City’s existing zoning ordinance that have been identified by staff, 
the Planning Commission and City Council as areas where revisions to the existing language may be 
beneficial. Staff will bring individual items to the Planning Commission on a regular basis to present 
amendments for consideration. This item relates to building height, setbacks and topographical 
conditions. 
 
The City has been challenged on the existing language related to these items and how to interpret the 
existing code language. One of the areas the working group has been reviewing is the current 
requirement for houses with a height greater than 35 feet to obtain a conditional use permit (CUP). Staff 
believes that this is something that could be moved into development standards rather than requiring a 
conditional use permit. If the application meets the standards, staff would approve the building permit. 
However, the Planning Commission directed staff to keep the CUP requirement but modify the 
standards to raise the threshold for a CUP. 
 
Deb Breen gathered the CUPs for building height and found 59 CUPs for building height were submitted 
since 2000. Many of these CUPs were tied to new developments where streets and grading were done 

244



 

 

prior to home construction. In 2006, an application from 8 Mink Lake was submitted and denied. The 
application was then revised, resubmitted and approved. Also, it appears that some blanket approvals 
were granted for Rapp Farms and Red Forest Way as part of the East Oaks PDA so that individual 
CUPs were not required.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed this issue at length at the October 26th meeting and at the 
November 30th meeting. This language was developed by the working group based on those 
discussions. 

 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
Section 151.050 (D)(7) of the City Code requires a conditional use permit for buildings with a height 
greater than 35 feet and establishes the following standards: 
 
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are naturally 

suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level;  
(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof structure will 

be considered a full story; 
(e) Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of adjacent 

lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each 
foot in height above 35 feet; and  

(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 
There has been debate about both items c and e in the standards.  
 
The Commission noted that item (c) was adopted based on the historic North Oaks vision that homes be 
designed to be part of the land rather than grading a lot to fit a desired home. Staff researched other 
cities to review how they deal with this issue and found that most cities have general language similar to 
North Oaks, but the working group did recommend including some language from the City of Gem Lake. 
 
The issue of setbacks has become a source of concern in recent years. Administrator Kress noted that 
when he speaks with landowners with home taller than 35 feet, most simply design the home to meet 
the 50-foot setback regardless of which portion of the home exceeds 35 feet. However, in 2022 a 
landowner challenged the City ordinance interpretation that when any portion of the home exceeds 35 
feet, the home must comply with the 50-foot setback on the side and rear.  The working group felt that 
the more liberal interpretation was reasonable and directed staff to prepare language that would clarify 
the intent to only require the larger setback for those portions of the structure that exceed 35 feet in 
height.  
 
The working group recommended that the language be modified as follows: 
 

245



 

 

(7) Buildings with a height greater than 35 feet, provided that:  
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. Chimneys, weather 

vanes and the like shall not be counted as an element of building height;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development or 

grading are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level. 
“Naturally suited” shall be defined as applying to lots that meet at least the following criteria:; 

i. A lot shall meet all current stormwater regulations; 
ii.  A house should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the 

basement finished floor elevation to the groundwater elevation, as 
determined by a geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation;  

iii. A natural slope in the topography exists prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements that organically accommodates a home design with an egress 
or walkout level and no artificial topographical grade change in excess of 6 
feet in total is required or created; and  

i.iv. Any other factors exist that demonstrate the proposed building is compatible 
with the natural condition of the land prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements;  

(c)(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

(d)(e) Any time any portion of a building exceeds 35 feet in height and that portion is within 50 feet 
of an adjacent side or rear  lot line, the setback requirement applicable to that portion of the 
building relative to that lot line shall be increased by 2 feet for each foot in height (or portion 
thereof) above 35 feet. For example, if a portion of a planned building is 44 feet in height and 
that portion is less than 50 feet from a side or rear lot line, the typical 30 foot setback 
requirement for that portion of the building would be increased by 18 feet to a minimum 48 
foot setbackAny time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 
50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the 
adjacent setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and  

(e)(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

 
Attached for reference: 

 

Exhibit A: Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 151 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Setback Exhibits 

 
  

246



 

 

Action 
 
Move to adopt the Ordinance amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, regarding 
building height and setback standards in the RSL- Residential Single-Family Low 
Density District 

 
 

247



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, REGARDING 
BUILDING HEIGHT 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.050(D)(7) of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended as follows. The underlined text 
shows the proposed additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

(7) Buildings with a height greater than 35 feet, provided that:  
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. Chimneys, weather 

vanes and the like shall not be counted as an element of building height;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development or grading are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 
or walkout level. “Naturally suited” shall be defined as applying to lots that meet at 
least the following criteria:; 

i. A lot shall meet all current stormwater regulations; 
ii.  A building should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the 

basement finished floor elevation to the groundwater elevation, as determined by 
a geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation;  

iii. A natural slope in the topography exists prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements that organically accommodates a home design with an egress or 
walkout level and no artificial topographical grade change in excess of 6 feet in 
total is required or created; and  

i.iv. Any other factors exist that demonstrate the proposed building is compatible with 
the natural condition of the land prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements.;  

(c)(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the 
roof structure will be considered a full story;  

(d)(e) Any time any portion of a building exceeds 35 feet in height and that portion is within 
50 feet of an adjacent side or rear  lot line, the setback requirement applicable to that 
portion of the building relative to that lot line shall be increased by 2 feet for each foot 
in height (or portion thereof) above 35 feet. For example, if a portion of a planned 
building is 44 feet in height and that portion is less than 50 feet from a side or rear lot 
line, the typical 30 foot setback requirement for that portion of the building would be 
increased by 18 feet to a minimum 48 foot setbackAny time the side or rear elevations 
of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building 

248



 

 

line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in 
height above 35 feet; and  

(e)(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

Section Two.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 
adoption and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the ____day of _______________, 2024. 

 

      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 
City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on ______________, 2024) 

249



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY,  MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE 

NO. 2024-___ , AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, 
REGARDING BUILDING HEIGHT 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 11, 2024, the City Council of the City of North Oaks, Ramsey 
County, Minnesota (“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 2024-______, an Ordinance Amending City 
Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Building Height; and   
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 412.191, subd. 4, the Council may, by a 4/5ths 
vote, direct that only the title and a summary of the ordinance be published; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of North Oaks has reviewed the summary of 
Ordinance No. 2024-____ which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of North Oaks has determined that publication 
of the title and a summary of Ordinance No. 2024-___ would clearly inform the public of the intent 
of the ordinance; and   
 

WHEREAS, due to the length of Ordinance No. 2024-____ the City Council desires to 
publish a summary of the Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by a vote of at least 4/5ths of its members, 

that the City Council of the City of North Oaks hereby: 
 

1. Approves the text of the summary of Ordinance No. 2024-__ attached as Exhibit 
A and authorizes the publication of the summary shown in Exhibit A in lieu of 
publication of the entirety of Ordinance No. 2024-___  in the City’s official 
newspaper.  

 

2. Directs the City Clerk to ensure that a full and complete printed copy of 
Ordinance No. 2024-___is available for inspection during regular business hours 
at the office of the North Oaks City Clerk, by standard mail, or by electronic 
mail.  
 

3. Directs the City Clerk to file the executed Ordinance No. 2024-____ upon the 
books and records of the City along with proof of publication.  

 
This resolution is passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks, 

Ramsey County, Minnesota this 11th day of April, 2024. 

250



 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
 
 

By:   
Krista Wolter 
Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 
 
 

By:    
Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

251



EXHIBIT A 
 

SUMMARY PUBLICATION 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-___ 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, 
REGARDING BUILDING HEIGHT 

 
On April 11, 2024, the City Council of the City of North Oaks (“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 
2024-_____, (“Ordinance”) an Ordinance Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding 
Building Height. 
 
The Ordinance modifies the conditional use permit standards for buildings with a height greater than 35 
feet in Section 151.050(D)(7).  
 
It is hereby determined that publication of this title and summary will clearly inform the public of 
the intent and effect of Ordinance No. 2024-___ and it is directed that only the above title and 
summary of Ordinance No. 2024-___conforming to Minn. Stat. Sec. 331A.01 be published, with 
the following: 

NOTICE 

A printed copy of the full text of Ordinance No. 2024-___ is available for public inspection by any 
person during regular office hours at the office of the North Oaks City Clerk, 100 Village Center 
Drive, # 230, North Oaks MN 55127, by standard mail, or by electronic mail, and at any other public 
location which the Council designates. 

252



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

I-
35

E

Sherwood Rd

Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal
Pond

North
Mallard

Pond

South
Mallard

Pond

BOBO
LIN

K
L

N

SHADOW LN

SOUTH LONG LAKE T R

B
L U

EBIRD
LN

ISLA

N
D

RD

W
EST PLEASANT LAKE RD

WH ITE OAKS

LN

TH
RU

SH
 L

N

BASSWOOD LN

LO

ST
RO

C
K

L
N

EASTVIEW  LN

LO
N

G

VI EW LN

H
AY

C
A

M
P

R
D

B
L

U
E

C

R A NE LN

N
O

R
D

C
IR

C
L

E
R

D

R
E

D
M

APLE LN

A
SPEN

LN

N
O

RD

CIR
CLE

RD

NORD  CIRCLE  RD

NORTH DEEP LA KE RD

C
H

IC
K

A
D

E E
L

N

S
O

U
T

H
D

EEP
LAKE RD

WISHBONE
LN

CHARL EY
LAKE CT

L
A

K
E

C
T

L
A

K
E

B
A

Y

WEST LAKE DR

PE
T

ER
SO

N
   

PL

W
ILDFLO W ER WAY

ANEMONE

CIR

L
O

NG
M AR SH LN

CHARLES   LAKE   RD

HACKBER
RY

LN

C
R

EE
K

SID
E  LN

W
IL

DFLOWER

P L B
L

A
CK

OAK RD

GOLDFINCHLN

IR
O

N

W
OOD LN

ISL AN D
VIE

W
LN

CROCUS  LN

RE
D

  F
O

X
  R

D

R E D FOX RD

PARTRIDGE
LN

S AN

D
P

IP
E

R
LN

SN
O

W
Y O W

L
LN

NUTHATCH LN

CATBIRD CIR

HTS

R
E

D
F

O
R

E
S

T
L

N

N
O

R
T

H
O

A
K

S
R

D

H AW
K

L
N B

L
U

E
FL

A
G

C
T

FALCON LN

C
A

T
B

IR
D

LN

N
O

RT
H

O
A

K
S

R
D

W
O

O
DHILL LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

K
  B

L
V

D

PHOEBE  LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

N

E
A

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
LA

K
E

R
D

BENT TREE
LN

O
R

IO
L

E
LN

PHEASANT LN

EAST OAKS RD

DEER
HILLS
CT

D
E

ER

HILLS DRIVE

WHIT E P IN

E
RD

P
IN

E
 C

O
N

E
 R

D

M
ARSH

 RDG

LARCH LN

K

N
O L L

R
D

PIN
E

RD

PEARSON
PL

O
T

T
E

R
  LN

C
H

IP
M

U
N

K
 L

N

BA
D

G
ER

   
LN

SKI   
LN

SKILLM
AN

LN

B

UFFALO

R
D

DOVE LN

ROBB FARM RD

HERO
N

L
N

W
E

S
T

S
H

O
R

E
R

D

TH

O
M

P
SO

N
LN

BIR
CH

LN

Q U A

IL
L

N

SWALLOW LN

SUMMIT
HEIGHTS

SUMMIT
VIEW

SUMMIT LANE

SUMMIT
COURT

SUMMIT
CROSING

SUMMIT RIDGE DR

M

ALLARD LN

ROBB  F
ARM  R

D

BLUE G OOSE RD

L
ILY

P
O

N
D

R

D

W
R

EN
L

N

EAST GILFILLAN  RD

D
U

CK
PA

SS
R

D

TEAL
ISLAND RD

SQUIRREL LN

D
U

C
K

PA
S

S

RD

M
O

N
A

RC
H

 W
A

Y

CRESCENT LN

LE A F WING D R

RID GE

RD

MARTIN LN

RID
G

E
RD

MEADO W

LN

WILLOW RD

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
L

N

L
A

RKS P U R LN

L
A

R
K

SP
U

R
L

N

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

  L
A

K
E

  R
D

 

R
A

V
EN

R
D

S
U

N

SHINE
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

OVERHILL DR

EAST
PLEASANT

LA
K

E
R

D

DOG

W
O

O
D

L
N

W
O

O
D

D
U

C
K

LN

E
A

G
L

E
R

I D
G

E
R

D

D
E

E
R

L
N

N
O

R
T

H
  O

A
K

S
  R

D

S
U

N
SE

T
LN

BUFFALO RD

R
A

C
C

O

ON RD

SPARROW
LN

P
H

E
A

SA
N

T
LN

G
A

DW
A

LL
LN

C
A

RD
IN

A
L

LN

EA
ST

O
A

K
S

R
D

P O

PLA
R L N

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

L
N

B
LU

E
JAY

LN

BLUE SPRUCE
CT

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
R

D

C
O

LU
M

B
IN

E
L

N

EVERG
REEN CT

HILL 
FARM 
CT

HILL FARM CIR

HILL  FARM   CIR

WEST PLEASANT LAKE
RD

SPR
I NG MARSH

LN

RED PINE RD

RE
D

 P
IN

E 
 L

N

LAWTON LN

CAPAUL

W
OODS CT

BRA
IN

A
R

D
W

A
Y

F
O

S
T

E
R

PL

VILLAGE

C
EN

T
E

R
D

R

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

LN

B
U

C
H

A
L

HEIGH
TS

O
SP

R
E

Y
C

T

C
AT

B
I R

D
L

N

EAST
PLEASAN

T
LA

K
E

R
D

W
E

S
T

P
L

EA
SA

NT
LAKE

R
D

P
R

E
SE

R
V

E
TR

BLUE JAY
LN

BLU E J A Y
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

W
E

ST
P

L
E

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

H
IL

L
FA

R
M

C
IR

R
E

D
B

A
R

N
R

D

EVERG REEN
RD

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

  L
N

EAST  OAKS  RD

EA
ST

PLEASA

NT
LA

K
E

RD

HUMMINGBIRD
HILL

RO
BIN LN

THO MPSO N
L

N

NORTH
M ALL ARD RD

N
O

R T
H

M
A

L
L

A
R

D
R

D

P
IN

E
R

D

HAWTHORNE CT

EAST
PLE

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
  LN

DEER
HILLS
CIR

EAST O
AKS RD

DOVE LN

M
A

L
LA

R
D

RD

MINK LN

NORTH
MALLARD

CT

SKILLMAN
LN

SPRING FARM LN

SPRING FARM LN

EAST O R IO
LE

LN

BENT
TREE
CT

BLACK
LAKE
CT

BLAC
K

LAKE RD

RED
FOREST

W
AY

RED FOREST WAY

NORTH OAKS
RD

S
O

U
T

H
D

EE P
L AKE RD

EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

W
EST

PLEASANT LAKE RD

SU

M AC
LN

ISLA
N

D
R

D

ISLA
N

D
RD

SO

UTH
LO

N
G

LA
K

E
T

R

SOUTH LONG LAKE TR

PRESERVE
TR

B
LA

C
K

OA
K

RD

BLACK OAK RD

LO
N

G
M

A
R

SH
LN

P
ET

ER
SO

N
P

L

SCOTCH PI NE RD

S
C

O
T

C
H

P
IN

E
R

D

SCOTCH
PINE

LN

SCOTCH
PINE

CT

SCOTCH
PINE

CIR

DO
N

BUSH RD

SOUTHPOINTECT
RAVEN RD

MEADOWLARK
LN

W ILLOW RD

W
E

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
L

A
K

E
R

D EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

H
IG

H

CIRCLE

W
AY

WEST BAY LN

EAGL E

R
ID

G
E

R
D

E
A

G
LE

R
ID

G
E

R
D

SUNSET
LN

MAYCOMB LN

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

D

RA
D

LE
Y 

PL ALCO
TT CT

C
A

L
P

U
R

N
IA

 C
T

M
O

C
K

IN
G

B
IR

D
  C

T

TREE FARM LN

CRESCENT LN

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
C

T

RA
P

P
FARM

B
LV

D

M
O

N
A

R CH WAYM
O

N
A

R
C

H
L

N

RAPP FARM
L

N

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M

P LACE

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M
BLVD

SKI H ILL

RCM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RCM-PUD

RMM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RMM

RSL

RSL-PUD

Fut
ure

Red

For
est

RMH-PUD

RSM-PUD

R

RSL

RSL

RSM

R

R

RSL

RSL

R

RSM

R
RMM-PUDRSM

RMM

RSM

R

C

C/S

City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan

MAP 8
Existing Zoning

Districts Map

OS (Open Space)

RSL (Residential Single Family - Low Density)

RSL-PUD (Residential Single Family - PUD)

RSM (Residential Single Family - Medium Density)

RMM (Residential Multiple Family Medium Density)

RMM-PUD (Residential Multiple Family Medium
Density - PUD)

RMH-PUD (Residential Multiple Family High
Density - PUD)

RCM-PUD (Residential-Commercial Mixed-PUD)

C (Commercial)

C/S (Commercial/Service)

LI (Limited Industrial)

R (Recreation)

HP (Historic Preservation)

Shoreland District Boundaries

Source: City Zoning Map
as of 5 - 10 - 21

North Oaks
Boundary

¦

RSM-PUD (Res. Single Fam. - Med. Density - PUD)

253



Landform® and Site to Finish® are registered service marks of Landform Professional Services, LLC.

11.30.2023
Ordinance Amendments • North Oaks, MN

Building Height and Setbacks Exhibit

254



1.1 A bill for an act

1.2 relating to local government; establishing requirements for multifamily residential
1.3 developments in cities; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes,
1.4 chapter 462.

1.5 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

1.6 Section 1. [462.3571] MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS.

1.7 Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the following terms have

1.8 the meanings given.

1.9 (b) "Affordable housing development" means a multifamily residential development in

1.10 which:

1.11 (1) at least 20 percent of the residential units are for households whose incomes do not

1.12 exceed 50 percent of the greater of the statewide or area median income; or

1.13 (2) at least 40 percent of the residential units are for households whose incomes do not

1.14 exceed 60 percent of the greater of the statewide or area median income.

1.15 The deed or declaration for an affordable residential unit must also contain a restrictive

1.16 covenant requiring the property to remain affordable housing for at least 30 years.

1.17 (c) "City" means a home rule charter or statutory city.

1.18 (d) "Commercial use" means the use of land or buildings, in whole or in part, for the

1.19 sale, lease, rental, or trade of products, goods, and services.

1.20 (e) "Cottage housing" means residential dwelling units on a lot with a common open

1.21 space that either:

1Section 1.

REVISOR KRB H4010-1HF4010   FIRST ENGROSSMENT

State of MinnesotaThis Document can be made available
in alternative formats upon request

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
H. F. No.   4010NINETY-THIRD SESSION

Authored by Kozlowski, Howard, Agbaje, Hollins, Wolgamott and others02/19/2024
The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Housing Finance and Policy
Adoption of Report: Amended and re-referred to the Committee on State and Local Government Finance and Policy04/02/2024

255



2.1 (1) is owned in common; or

2.2 (2) has units owned as condominium units with property owned in common and a

2.3 minimum of 20 percent of the lot size as open space.

2.4 (f) "Courtyard apartment" means a building with up to four attached residential dwelling

2.5 units arranged on two or three sides of a yard or garden.

2.6 (g) "Duplex" means a two-family home, classified as an IRC-2 in the State Building

2.7 Code and not meeting the definition of townhouse.

2.8 (h) "Environmental justice area" has the meaning given in section 116.065, subdivision

2.9 1.

2.10 (i) "Fiveplex" means a building containing five residential dwelling units intended for

2.11 nontransient occupancy and not meeting the definition of townhouse.

2.12 (j) "Fourplex" means a building containing four residential dwelling units intended for

2.13 nontransient occupancy and not meeting the definition of townhouse.

2.14 (k) "Metropolitan area" has the meaning given in section 473.121, subdivision 2.

2.15 (l) "Multifamily residential development" means a single residential building with at

2.16 least 13 units or a mixed-use building with commercial use on the ground floor and at least

2.17 half of the usable square footage is for residential use. Multifamily residential development

2.18 does not include the following housing types:

2.19 (1) duplexes;

2.20 (2) triplexes;

2.21 (3) fourplexes;

2.22 (4) fiveplexes;

2.23 (5) sixplexes;

2.24 (6) townhouses;

2.25 (7) stacked flats;

2.26 (8) courtyard apartments;

2.27 (9) cottage housing; and

2.28 (10) single-family detached homes.

2.29 (m) "Residential unit" means a residential dwelling for the use of a single owner or

2.30 tenant.

2Section 1.

REVISOR KRB H4010-1HF4010  FIRST ENGROSSMENT

256



3.1 (n) "Single-family detached home" means any building that contains one residential

3.2 dwelling unit used, intended, or designed to be built, used, rented, leased, let, or hired out

3.3 to be occupied, or occupied for living purposes that is not attached to another structure.

3.4 (o) "Sixplex" means a building containing six residential dwelling units intended for

3.5 nontransient occupancy and not meeting the definition of townhouse.

3.6 (p) "Stacked flat" means a nontransient residential building of no more than three stories

3.7 on a lot zoned for residential development in which each floor is a residential dwelling unit.

3.8 (q) "Structure" means anything constructed or installed for residential or commercial

3.9 use that requires a location on a parcel of land. Structure does not include nonconformities.

3.10 (r) "Townhouse" means a single-family residential dwelling unit constructed in a group

3.11 of three or more attached units in which each unit extends from the foundation to the roof

3.12 and with open space on at least two sides. Each single-family residential dwelling unit shall

3.13 be considered to be a separate building. Separate building service utilities shall be provided

3.14 to each single-family residential dwelling unit when required by the Minnesota State Building

3.15 Code.

3.16 (s) "Triplex" means a building containing three residential dwelling units intended for

3.17 nontransient occupancy and not meeting the definition of townhouse.

3.18 Subd. 2. Multifamily residential developments. (a) Subject to compliance with all

3.19 municipal zoning standards, multifamily residential developments shall be a permitted use

3.20 in any zoning district that allows for a commercial use, except for:

3.21 (1) industrial zoning districts where a commercial use is not allowed; or

3.22 (2) industrial zoning districts that are located in environmental justice areas.

3.23 (b) A multifamily residential development may not be constructed on a lot zoned for a

3.24 single-family detached home unless otherwise authorized by law, rule, or ordinance.

3.25 (c) A city may require a conditional use permit for a multifamily residential development

3.26 only if the specific circumstances of the development raise concerns related to the public

3.27 health, safety, and general welfare.

3.28 Subd. 3. Applicable zoning standards. (a) A multifamily residential development must

3.29 comply with any standards, performance conditions, or requirements, including the adequacy

3.30 of existing public infrastructure, imposed by a city to promote the public health, safety, and

3.31 general welfare.

3Section 1.

REVISOR KRB H4010-1HF4010  FIRST ENGROSSMENT

257



4.1 (b) A city must not impose a height requirement on a multifamily residential development

4.2 that is less than the following:

4.3 (1) in a city of the first class, 75 feet;

4.4 (2) in a city of the second class, 45 feet;

4.5 (3) in a city of the third class in the metropolitan area, 45 feet; or

4.6 (4) in a city of the third class outside of the metropolitan area, 35 feet.

4.7 (c) A city must not impose a setback requirement on a multifamily residential

4.8 development that is greater than the smallest required minimum setback distance of any

4.9 other structure in the same zoning district of the parcel on which the development will be

4.10 built.

4.11 (d) A city may impose a height or setback requirement that is different from the

4.12 requirements in this subdivision if such requirements would result in a multifamily residential

4.13 development that would substantially vary in compatibility and scale with surrounding

4.14 properties.

4.15 (e) This subdivision does not apply to a city of the fourth class.

4.16 Subd. 4. Parking requirements limited. A city may not require more than one off-street

4.17 parking space per residential unit, except that additional disability parking spaces may be

4.18 required to meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

4.19 Subd. 5. Affordable housing development; height and mass requirements. An

4.20 affordable housing development must be permitted to exceed one or more maximum

4.21 dimensional standards imposed by city official zoning controls as a zoning density bonus.

4.22 A zoning density bonus offered by a city for an affordable housing development may include

4.23 one or more of the following dimensional standards above the maximum base zoning

4.24 regulations:

4.25 (1) a building height increase of at least 35 feet;

4.26 (2) an increased floor area ratio;

4.27 (3) an increased number of units per acre;

4.28 (4) an increased total number of units;

4.29 (5) a higher percentage of lot coverage; or

4.30 (6) other dimensional standards that increase building size by at least 30 percent more

4.31 than what is allowed for market-rate multifamily residential developments.

4Section 1.

REVISOR KRB H4010-1HF4010  FIRST ENGROSSMENT

258



5.1 Subd. 6. Administrative review process. (a) Notwithstanding any law, rule, or ordinance

5.2 to the contrary, a city must establish an administrative review process subject to the

5.3 procedures in section 15.99 for a multifamily residential development meeting the

5.4 requirements of this section.

5.5 (b) An application reviewed through an administrative review process or other process

5.6 may not be approved contingent on factors not related to the protection of the public health,

5.7 safety, and welfare; the completion of a study; or the development being a part of a planned

5.8 unit development if the multifamily residential development complies with this section.

5.9 Subd. 7. Exceptions. (a) Nothing in this section authorizes a multifamily residential

5.10 development that is prohibited by state or federal law or rule, or is prohibited under an

5.11 ordinance adopted pursuant to such a state or federal law or rule, that protects floodplains,

5.12 areas of critical or historic concern, wild and scenic rivers, shore land, or that otherwise

5.13 restrict residential units to protect and preserve the public health, the environment, or scenic

5.14 areas.

5.15 (b) A multifamily residential development may not be inconsistent with approved plans

5.16 under chapter 103B.

5.17 EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective January 1, 2025.

5Section 1.

REVISOR KRB H4010-1HF4010  FIRST ENGROSSMENT

259



3/25/24, 3:22 PM House Committee Advances Amended Multifamily Housing Development Bill - League of Minnesota Cities

https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/ 1/2

House Committee Advances
Amended Multifamily Housing
Development Bill
March 25, 2024
Several concerning provisions were either removed from the bill or modified based on the
League s̓ feedback and city leadersʼ advocacy.

On March 20, the House Housing Finance and Policy Committee considered and amended HF
4010 (Rep. Alicia “Liish” Kozlowski, DFL-Duluth) before advancing it by voice vote onto the
House State and Local Government Finance and Policy Committee.

Changes to the bill
The House housing committee adopted  a delete everything amendment (pdf) that replaced the
existing bill s̓ language. The amendment eliminated several concerning provisions based on
League advocacy, and includes new provisions that are supported by the League and city
stakeholders. Changes made by the delete-everything amendment include:

Removal of the prohibition of multifamily development being located less than 500 feet from
highways, airports, or rail lines.

Removal of the requirement that cities must approve multifamily development if it is
consistent with a city s̓ comprehensive plan.

Allowing cities to permit multifamily residential development, subject to the bill, to be
permitted via a conditional use permit to preserve public health, safety, and general welfare.

Removal of the 150-foot height requirement, with language that creates more reasonable
height requirement restrictions, and the inclusion of language to allow cities to impose other
height or setback requirements to ensure compatibility and scale with surrounding
properties.

Replacement of the previously required administrative review process with a process that is
consistent with existing Minnesota Statutes, section 15.99.

Requirements that multifamily residential development containing 13 units or more be
allowed as a permitted use in any zoning district that allows for commercial use except for
industrial zoning districts where commercial use is not allowed, single-family zoned areas,
or any industrial-zoned areas located in an environmental justice area.

Testimony on the bill
The League provided testimony during the hearing, along with City of Eagan Community
Development Director Jill Hutmacher, that shared appreciation for the authors of the bill and
their willingness to continue to working with the League and cities to address concerns.

260

https://www.house.mn.gov/Committees/Home/93012
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?b=House&f=HF4010&ssn=0&y=2023
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?b=House&f=HF4010&ssn=0&y=2023
https://www.house.mn.gov/members/profile/15595
https://www.house.mn.gov/Committees/Home/93022
https://www.house.mn.gov/comm/docs/P0RVCKpaWEKGjFb97SzOrQ.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/15.99


3/25/24, 3:22 PM House Committee Advances Amended Multifamily Housing Development Bill - League of Minnesota Cities

https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/ 2/2

While changes in the language based on conversations with the League are appreciated, city
testimony continues to focus on concerns that remain with some provisions in the bill, as well
as the overarching concern with state preemption of city zoning and land use authority.

Cities are encouraged to review the legislation and provide feedback to the League as well as
reach out directly to their legislators.

Read more news articles.

Your LMC Resource

Daniel Lightfoot

IGR Representative & Federal Relations Manager

(651) 281-1295 or (800) 925-1122
dlightfoot@lmc.org

261

https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/latest-news/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/
https://www.lmc.org/news-publications/news/all/missing-middle-housing-bill-amended-and-advanced-by-house-housing-committee/


 

 

 
 Kennedy & Graven 

Fifth Street Towers 

150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

 (612) 337-9245 direct 

bnason@kennedy-graven.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the Council 

 

FROM: Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 

DATE: April 11, 2024 

 

RE:  Request to Withdraw Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Background 

 

In 2023, the City received an application from the North Oaks Company (NOC) for an amendment 

to the City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan to move the metropolitan urban services (MUSA) line to 

include a number of lots within the Red Forest Way development, as well as another lot owned by 

the NOC, and to include this area within the Emerging Suburban Edge designation. This would 

allow those lots to be served by sanitary sewer, instead of septic systems. The Council approved 

the application for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment, and subsequently approved a revision to 

that amendment request by NOC. 

 

Staff have been working with Metropolitan Council Staff as they processed the Comprehensive 

Plan Amendment. Metropolitan Council Staff ultimately found that the Amendment did not 

conform with the metropolitan system plan for wastewater and that modifications to the 

amendment would be required before it could become effective. Specifically, the Amendment was 

found not to conform with the existing wastewater system plan because the density of proposed 

development on the lots proposed to be served by sanitary sewer, along with other areas already 

designated Emerging Suburban Edge, would be less than 3 units/acre, which is the minimum 

required density for areas designated Emerging Suburban Edge. The Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment was considered by the Metropolitan Council’s Community Development Committee 

at its March 18, 2023 meeting, at which meeting the Committee unanimously recommended that 

the Metropolitan Council adopt a resolution finding that the proposed amendment does not 

conform to the metropolitan system plan for wastewater and require that the City modify its 

comprehensive plan amendment. The Metropolitan Council is set to vote on the Comprehensive 

Plan Amendment at its April 24th meeting.  

 

The NOC has submitted a written notification of withdrawal of its previously-approved application 

for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment, and has requested that the City formally withdraw the 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment it submitted to the Metropolitan Council prior to the 

262



 

 

Metropolitan Council formally taking action on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment. The NOC 

would like the opportunity to prepare a new application for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

that would address the requirement that properties within the MUSA designated Emerging 

Suburban Edge be developed at a density of at least 3 units/acre. The NOC understands that this 

will require it to submit a new application for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment, which will 

require a public hearing and review and recommendation by the Planning Commission as well as 

formal Council action to approve or deny the application.  

 

 

2. Request for Council Action.  

 

The Council is asked to consider adoption of the attached Resolution formally withdrawing its 

previously submitted Comprehneisve Plan Amendment from the Metropolitan Council.  

263



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING RETENTION OF CITY ZONING AUTHORITY 

  

WHEREAS, decisions about local zoning and land use that best fit community needs 

are best left to city residents and officials; 

 

WHEREAS, cities use zoning and land use regulations to balance property usage, 

plan for community growth, and preserve natural resources among others; 

 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota State Legislature, in an attempt to address housing 

availability and affordability challenges, is considering measures that would preempt city 

authority to regulate land use and zoning and assign that authority to state government; 

 

WHEREAS, passage of those measures would inadequately address housing 

availability and affordability challenges; 

 

WHEREAS, a rigid framework for land use and zoning mandated by the state makes 

little sense and cities require flexibility to address their own unique circumstances; 

 

WHEREAS, while some of the objectional provisions have been removed from the 

pending legislation, other concerning measure remain; 

 

WHEREAS, cities across the state have already put in years of work to address 

zoning issues, and continue to do so, with the help of community engagement, and cities 

should not be preempted from exercising appropriate local control over zoning matters. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

The City Council of the City of North Oaks hereby: 

 

1. Opposes state proposals that seek to preempt local zoning and land use decision-

making when it comes to residential development. 

 

2. Urges the legislature to take into consideration the many concerns raised by the League 

of Minnesota Cities and numerous other Minnesota cities with respect to currently 

proposed zoning-related legislation. 

 

3. Supports constructive policy alternatives to incentivize and bolster city efforts for 

addressing housing challenges. 

 

264



 

 

This Resolution is passed and adopted by the North Oaks City Council this 11th day of April, 2024.   

 

 

       _________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________  

Kevin Kress, City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

265



February Month in Review 

   

February 2024 

 
• Oak wilt re-inspections are continuing. The removal deadline was Feb 1 and we still have 

some diseased oaks standing as the tree care companies are very busy and the weather 

has not been cooperative. Most have arranged for the work but are just waiting for it to 

be done. Road restrictions are also currently in place adding to the challenge.  

• Ash tree inspections/notifications are in full effect, and we are working with residents to 

educate and inform on their options as Emerald Ash Borer continues to impact the 

community. We have marked well over 1000 trees just this winter. We are prioritizing 

ash tree removals based on the extent of the infestation, as well as the location of the 

trees (i.e. near streets, homes, powerlines, etc.).  

• I met with the builder at Gate Hill to discuss the preservation and removal of trees along 

the berm on Centerville Rd.  

• We responded to a homeowner call at 3 Evergreen Rd with regards to tree concerns and 

provided tree care advice  

• We have provided copies to City Hall and NOHOA of the spreadsheets we use to 

document diseased trees so that they are available to staff as needed.  

• We provided an arborist workshop for a few tree care companies that were unable to 

attend in January and/or February. We have a lot more tree care companies in town 

mostly due to the high number of Emerald Ash Borer trees.  

• We continue to mark hazard trees as we see them.  

 

 

266



March Month in Review    

March 2024 

 
• The last two oak wilt sites are having their trees removed soon. That makes for a total of 

101 oak wilt trees removed, helping to preserve the oak canopy.  

• Made recommendations on appropriate species to plant on the Gate Hill berm project 

for Cudd Homes and provided field verification of berm work to city staff. 

• We responded to homeowner calls at 7 Overhill, 23 Pheasant Ln, 13 Lake Bay, and 

Charley Lake Park small trees, with regards to tree concerns and provided tree care 

advice. 

• Coordinated brush pick-up program for the end of May. Requested bids from local 

vendors and selected the lowest bid. Program was awarded to Budget Tree.   

• Emerald Ash Borer inspections continue year-round. 

 

 

267


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6b. - 2.8.2024 Special City Council Minutes - draft.pdf
	Item 6b. - 2.8.2024 City Council Minutes - draft.pdf
	Item 6c. - Resolution_Accepting_Donations_for_Open_House aging grant.pdf
	Item 6d. - 2024-04-11 CC Packet_1 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 6e. - 2024-04-11 CC packet_2 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 6f. - 2024-04-11 CC Packet_70 W Pleasant.pdf
	Item 6g. - 2024-04-11 CC packet_4 dove lane.pdf
	Item 6h. - 2024-04-11 CC packet_6 Badger lane.pdf
	Item 6j.  - Check Register Detail March - April 2024.pdf
	Item 6j.  - Check Register April 2024.pdf
	Item 6j.  - Budget Diagrams April 2024.pdf
	Item 6j.  - 2024 Budget as of 4.11.2024.pdf
	April2024CouncilMeeting.docx
	Item 8a. - 2024-04-11_CC_Packet_solar_ordinance.pdf
	Item 9a. - 2024-04-11 CC Packet_buiding height ordinance.pdf
	Item 9b. - HF4010 4.02.2024.pdf
	Item 9b. - House Committee Advances Amended Multifamily Housing Development Bill - League of Minnesota Cities.pdf
	Item 9b. - Memo re Comp Plan Amd Withdrawal 4-11-24.pdf
	Item 9b. - NO Resolution re Local Zoning Control 4.05.2024.pdf
	Item 13a. - February in Review.pdf
	Item 13a. - March in Review.pdf



